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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE DIRECTORS OF THE BANK OF TOKYO
 
MITSUBISHI UFJ, LIMITED
 

We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of the Karachi Branch of The Balik of 
Tokyo, Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited (incorporated ill Japan with limited liability) ("the Branch") as at 
December 31, 2015 and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash 
flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof (here­
in-after referred to as the 'the financial statements') for the year then ended and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

It is the responsibility of the Branch's Management to establish and maintain a system of internal 
control, and prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting 
standards and the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVll of 1962), and the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing as applicable in 
Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe 
that our audit provides a reasonable basis tor our opinion and after due verification, which in case of 
loans and advances covered more than sixty percent of the total loans and advances of the Branch, we 
report that: 

(a)	 in our opimon, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Branch as required by the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XL VB of 1984); 

(b)	 in our opinion: 

(i)	 the statement of financial position and profit and loss account together with the notes 
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 
(LVll of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVll of J984), and are in 
agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with accounting 
policies consistently applied; 
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(ii)	 the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Branch's business; and 

(iii)	 the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year 
were in accordance with the objects of the Branch and the transactions of the Branch which 
have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Branch; 

(c)	 in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us 
the statement of financial position, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, 
cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part 
thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the 
information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of I962), and the 
Companies Ordinance, f984 (XLVI[ of 1984), in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view of the state of the Branch's affairs as at December 31, 2015, and its true balance of profit, 
its comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and 

(d)	 in our opinion Zakat deductible at SOurce under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 
1980), was deducted by the Branch and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under 
section 7 of that Ordinance. 
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Engagement Partner: 
Mushtaq Ali Hirani 

Date: March 22, 2016 
Karachi. 

Member of 
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The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited - Karachi Branch 
(Inca/paraled in Japan with limited liability) 

Statement or Financial Position
 
As at 3/ December 20/5
 

ASSETS 

Cash and balances with treasury banks
 
Balances with other banks
 
Lcntlings to financial institutions 

J Jl vcsuncn ts
 
Advances
 

Operating fixed assets
 

Deferred tax assets : net
 
Other assets
 

LlABlI.ITIES 

Bills payable
 
Borrowings
 
Deposits and other accounts
 
Sub-ordinatedloans
 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
 
Deferred lax liabilities - net
 
Other liabilities
 

NET ASSETS 

REPTHcSENTED IlY 

Head Office capital account
 
Reserves
 

Unremitted profit
 

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation ofassets 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

The annexed notes from I to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

ort;4 

Note 

7 

8 
9 

/0 

/I 

/2 

/4 
/5 
/6 

/7 

/8 

/9 

20 

2015 2014 
(Rupees in '000) 

4,233,157 4,016,022 
127,674 9,643 

3,741,212 1,408,414 
- -

2,589,396 2,257,101 
61,442 70,538 

- -
70,485 83,649 

10,823,366 

6,805,513 

4,017,853 

3,856,160 

161,693 
4,017,853 

4,017,853 

7,845,367 

4,013,627 

3,831,740 

3,716,072 

115,668 
3,831,740 

3,8:Jl.,740 

6,211 4,561 
1,409,814 602,899 
5,223,318 3,271,199 

- -
- -

4,451 5,940 
161,719 129,028 

0\' ,C;)(K~ZUTOOHASHI ~~~,~.~ 
- k . / erreral Mana er ~Icral"Managtr 9 Deputy General Malinger.J 





The B<1I1k of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited - Karachi Branch 
(IncOrpOf'(lled in Japan with limited liability) 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the ye(ll' ended 3/ December 20 J5 

20t5 2014 

(Rupees '000) 

Profit after taxation for the year 45,293 27,177 

Other comprehensive income 

!{C!J/ that will not be reclassified to profit or loss account in subsequent periods 
Exchange adjustment on account of revaluation of Head Office capital 140,088 (716,788) 

Actuarial gain! (loss) on defined benefit plan (note 29.8.2) 1,126 I (2,035) 
Related deferred tax (394) 7]2 

732 (1,323) 

Total comprehensive income for the yen!' 186,113 (690,934) 

The annexed notes from I to llO form an integral part of these Iinancial statements. 

j)t/rf 

/~KAZLJTO OHASHI C'\- ~EEB SAiE![)
,c...) ;~generaJ Manager ~ G" O~PW' '>"'eral Man Iqt.'f 

C.}ncral Innager Deputy General Manager 



The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited - Karachi Branch 
(Incorporated in Japan wut: limited tinbitity) 

Cash Flow Statement 
For the year elided 3/ December 20/5 

Note 

CASH FLOW FHOM OPEHATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before taxation 
Dividend income 

2015 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 

62,765 69,001 

62,765 69,001 

Adjustments for 

Depreciation 

Amortization 
Provision Cor defined benefit plan 
Net gain 011 disposal of operating fixed assets 

15,99315,750 
2,6643,896 
1,2831,895 

(4,639)(4,315) 
17,226 15,301 

79,991 84,302 

Decrease / (increase) in operating assets 
Lendiogs to financial institutions 
Advances 
Others assets (excluding advance taxation) 

(Decrease) / increase in operating liabilities 

(2,332,798) I 919,304 
(332,295) (502,620) 

12,719 (17,141) 

(2,652,374) 399,543 

Bills payable 
norro\-vings 

Depos its and other accounts 

Other liabilities 
I 

(42,231)1,650 
56,370806,915 

(779,457)1,952,119 
1,28419,313 

2,779,997 (764,034) 
Contribution made to defined benefit plan (2,518) 

Income tax paid (6,435) (30,711) 

Net cash generatedfrom / (used in) operating activities 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Investments ill operating fixed assets 

Proceeds From sale of operating fixed assets 

201,179 (313,418) 

(10,604) (27,489) 
4,503 4,983 

Net cash used in investing activities (6,101) (22,506) 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 
Remittance received form Head Office
 

Net cash used infinancing activities 

Effects ofexchange adjustment on revaluation ofHead Office capital 140,088 (716,788) 
Increase I (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 335,166 (1,052,712) 

Cash and cash equivalents [It beginning of the year 4,025,665 5,078,377 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 27 4,360,831 4,025,665 

The annexed notes from] to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements, 

flrft 
\ ..;\ KAZUTO OHASHI 
.~ c/ /~ralManager L ~ASEEBSA!EU , / H,..., era!Mall:1\jl;I' .....ppU!·1 "lenCencral Mauagcr Deputy General Mnnnge 



The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited - Karachi Branch 
(Incorporated in Japan with limited liability) 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended J I December 2015 

Head Office Unremitted Totnl 
capital profits 
account 

------------------ (Rupees ill '000) -----------------­

OalHIH'C nt I .lanuary 2014 4,432,860 89,814 4,522,674 

Total conrprehensive income for the year 

Profit after tax [or the year ended 31 December 20 14 

Other comprehensive income 

Exchange adjustment on account ofrevaluation of Head Office capita]
 

Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan
 
Total comprehensive income for the year (716,788) 25,854 (690,934)
 

- ~77 27,177 

(716,788) - (716,788) 

I (1,323) (1,323) 

Balnuce at 31 Deccmher2014 3,716,072 115,668 3,831,740 

Total cornprehensive income/or tile year 
Profit alter tax for the year ended 31 December 2015 
Other comprehensive income 

Exchange adjustment on account of revaluation of Head Office capital G·I
Actuarial gain 011 defined benefit plan 

Total comprehensive income for the year 140,088 46,025 186,113 

45,293 45,293 

- 140,088 
732 732 

Balance at 31 December 2015 3,856,160 161,693 4,lJl7,853 

The annexed notes from 1 to 40 -form an integral part of these financial statements. 

W~ 

)-- ­ -
...... KAZUTO OHASHI
 

c::-:/ ~r:aJ Manager
 ~ /) ~EB SAI~:Ci'ueral Manager Deputy General Ma'Q<eWl/ General Man., 



The Bank of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UrI, Limited - Karachi Branch 
(Incorporated in Japan with limited liability) 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 December 20/5 

t.	 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

The Balik of Tokyo - Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited is incorporated in Japan with limited liability, Its operations in Pakistan 
arc carried out through a branch ("the Branch") located at Shaheen Complex, Karachi in the province of Siurlh. It is 
L'ngaged ill commercial banking business as described in the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962. 

The credit mtillg clone by Standard & Poor's in February 2016 for The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsuhishi Uf'J, Limited is A+ for 
the long term and A-I for the short term; Rating clone by Moody's in February 2016 is A 1 for the Jong term and p, I for 
the short term (representing deposit rating only) and rating done by Fitch in February 2016 is A for the long term and FI 
for the short term. 

2.	 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

2.1	 III accordance with the directives of thc Federal Government regarding the shifting or the banking system to Islamic 
modes, the State Bank of Pakistan has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade-related 
modes or financing includes purchase of goods by banks from their customers and immediate resale to them at 
appropriate profit in price on deferred payment basis. The purchase and resale arising under these arrangements are not f 

reflected in these financial statements as SUCh, but are restricted to the nrnouut of facility actually utilized and the 
appropriate portion of profit thereon. 

2.2	 These financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Branch's functional and presentation 
currency. 

3.	 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that commitments in respect 
or forward foreign exchange contracts have been marked to market and are carried at fair value and certain staff 
retirement benefits arc stated nt present value. 

4.	 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

4.1	 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise or such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 
1984, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, or directives issued by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SEep) and the State Dank of Pakistan (SSP). Wherever, the 
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, or directives issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the State Bank of Pakistan differ with the requirements of IFRS, 
the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, or the requirements of the 
said directives prevail. 

4.2	 The S[ll' vide BSD Circular No. 10. dated 26 August 2002 lias deferred the applicability of International Accounting 
Standard 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (lAS 39) and International Accounting Standard 40, 
lnvesuncnt Property (lAS 40) for Banking companies till further instructions. Further, according to the notification of the 
Securities and Excbnugc Commission of Pakistan (SECP) elated 28 April 2008, the IFRS - 7 "Financial Instruments: 
Disclosures" has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been 
considered in the preparation of these financial statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in 
accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP. 

f}t(1r 



IFRS X, 'Operating Segments' is effective for the Branch's accounting period beginning on or lifter 0 I January 2009. All 
banking companies / foreign branches operating in Pakistan are required to prepare their financial statements in line with 
the format prescribed under I3SD Circular No.4 dated 17 February 2006, IRevised Forms 01' Annual Financial 
Statements', effective from the accounting year ended 31 December 2006, The management of the Branch believes that 
as the SBP has defined the segment categorization in the above mentioned circular, the SEP requirements prevail over 
the requirements specified in the IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment information disclosed in these financial statements is 
based on the requirements laid down by the SEt>. 

4.3	 Stnndards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that arc effective for the year ended 31 

December 2015 

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended 31 December 2015, These 
standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Branch's operations or are not expected to 
have significant impact on the Branch's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures. 

Effective from accounting 

Standards I amendments period beginning on or after 

[FRS 10 -" Consolidated Financial Statements	 01 January 20 15 

lFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements	 oI January 2015 

[FRS 12 ····!liselnsure of Interests in Other Entities 
(Amendments) 01 January 2015 

(FRS 1J -- Fair Value Measurement	 01 January 2015 

Amendments to lAS 19 Employee Benefits: Employee 
contributions 01 July2014 

lAS 27 (Revised 2011) - Separate Financial Statements 
(Amendments)	 01 January 2015 

lAS 28 (Revised 20 II) -c Investmcnts in Associates and 
Joint Ventures	 01 January 2015 

4.4	 New accounting standards I amendments and IFH,S lnrcr-prctntlons that arc not yet effective 

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after 
the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to 
the Branch's operations or arc not expected to have significant impact on the Branch's Financial statements other than 
certain additional disclosures. 

Effective From accounting 
Standards I amendments period beginning 011 or after 

Amendments to lFRS II - Accounting for acquisitions 
of interests in joint operations	 01 January 2016 

Amendments to lAS I - Disclosure initiative	 01 January 2016 

Amendments to lAS 16 and lAS 38 Clarification or
 
acceptable methods ofdepreciation and amortization
 01 January 2016 

Amendments to lAS 16 and lAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer 
pl~\t1l.'i oI January 20 16 

{WI!
 



Effective from accounting 

Standards / amendments period beginning 011 or after 

Amendments to lAS 27 M Equity method in separate 

financial statements OJ January2016 

Amendments to II'RS 10 and lAS 28 Sale or 
contribution of assets between an investor and its 

associate or joint venture oI January 2016 

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS [2 and lAS 28 
Investment Entities: Applying the consolidation 

exception 01 January 2016 

Other than the aforesaid standards and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has also 
issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 

Pakistan: 

IFRS I _. First Time Adoption of Intcrnarional Financial Reporting Standards
 

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
 
[FRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts
 
JFRS 15-- Revenue from Contracts with Customers
 

IFRS 16 -- Leases
 

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND .JUDGMENTS 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 

income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in application of its accounting policies. The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed all all ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which 
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods. 

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Branch's financial statements or where 
judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows: 

Provision against non-performing loans and advances 

The Brauch reviews its loan portfolio to assess the amount of Han-performing loans and advances and provision required 
there against on a quarterly basis. 'While assessing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the 

account, Ilnancia1position of the borrower, the forced sale 'value of the securities and the requirement of the Prudential 
Regulations are considered. 

Operating fixed assets, depreciation and amortization 

The Bnmch carries its properties and equipment / intangibles at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization and 

;:lCl'HI1111\(ltec1 impairment losses, if any. In making estimates of tile depreciation / amortization, management uses the 

method which reflects the pattern in which economic benefits arc expected to be consumed by the Branch. The residual 
values and the method applied is reviewed at each financial year end and if there is a change in the expected pattern of 
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the assets, the method would be changed to reflect the change 
ill pattern. Such change is accounted for as change in accounting estimates in accordance with International Accounting 

Standard 8, "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors",M 

/}t{fr 



Income taxes 

ln making the estimate for income tax currently payable by the Branch, management considers the current income tax 

laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. In making the provision for deferred lax, 

estimate of the Branch's future taxable profit and expected reversal of deductible temporary differences are taken into 

account. 

The Seventh Schedule of Income Tax Ordinance, 200l governs taxation of banks in Pakistan, Head office administrative 
expenses are allowed on the bnsls that these expenses are determined as per Seventh Schedule of the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001 and charged in books of accounts of the Branch and a certificate from external auditors has been 
received to the effect that the claim of such expenses has been made in accordance with the provision of R\lle 4 of 
Seventh Schedule of Income Tax Ordinance, 200 I and is reasonable in relation to operations of the Branch. 

Defined benefit plan 

Liability is determined on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The actuarial 

assumptions used to determine the liability and related expense are disclosed in note 29. Actuarial assumptions are 

entity's best estimates of the variables that will determine the ultimate cost of providing post employment benefits. 
Changes in these assumptions in future years may effect the liability / asset under these plans in those years. 

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those applied in the 

preparation of' the financial statements of the Branch for the year ended 31 December 2014 except for the change 

explained in note 6.1. Significant accounting policies are enumerated as follows: 

6. t Fair value mcasurement 

During the year, the Branch has adopted IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' which became effective for the financial 

periods beginning on or after 01 January 2015. IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement establishes a single framework for 

measuring fair value and making disclosures about fair value measurements when such measurements are required or 

permitted by other If'RSs. It unifies the definition of fair values as the prices that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at thc measurement date. It replaces and 

expands the disclosure requirements about fair value measurements in other lFRSs. As a result, the Branch has included 

the additional disclosure in this regard in 110te 32 and 33 to the financial statements. In accordance with the transitional 

provisions of IFRS 13, the Brunch has applied the new fair value measnrement guidance prospectively. The application 
of IFRS 13 does not have auy significant impact on the financial statements of tile Branch except for certain additional 

disclosures. 

6.2 Sale lind repurchase agreements 

The Branch enters into purchase / (sale) of securities under agreements to resell / (repurchase) securities at a certain date 

in the future at a fixed price. Securities sold subject to a repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial 

statements as investments and the counter party liability is included in borrowings. Securities purchased under 

agreements to resell (reverse repo) arc not recognized in the financial statements as investments and the amount extended 

to the counter party is included ill lendings to financial institutions. The receivables are shown as collateralized by the 

underlying security. 

The difference between the purchase / (sale) and resale / (repurchase) consideration is recognized on a time proportion 

basis over the period of the transaction and is included in mark-up / return / interest earned or expensed. 

6.3 Investments 

The Branch classifies its investment portfolio into the following categories: 

!Yf/J­



lJeldjiJr trading 

These investments are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in prices or are part of a 

portfolio for which there is an evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking. 

These are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value. Net gain or loss on rernensurcment is included in the 

profit and loss account for the year. 

Llckl to maturity 

These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Branch has the positive intent 

and ability to hold upto maturities. 

These are measured at amortized cost using effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any to reflect 

recoverable amount. 

;1 vaitubtefor sale 

These are investments which do not fall under held for trading or held to maturity categories. 

Quoted securities classified us available for sale investments arc measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value. 

Any surplus / deficit arising thereon is taken directly to 'surplus/deficit on revaluation of securities' in the Statement of 

Financial Position below equity. The surplus / deficit arising on these securities is taken to the profit and loss account for 

till; year when actually realized upon disposal. 

Unqnotcd equity securities me valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. Break-Up value of equity securities is 
calculated with reference to the net assets of the investce company as per the latest available audited financial statements. 

Investments in other nuquotcd securities are valued at cost less impairment losses, ifany. 

Gain or loss on sale of investments is included ill profit and loss account for the year. 

Investments are recognized on trade-dare basis and are initially measured at fair value plus directly attributable 

transaction cost except for investments classified as held for trading. In case of held for trading investments, transaction 
costs are expensed in the profit and loss account for the year, 

6.4 Advances 

Advances are stated net of provision for non-performing loans and advances. The provision for non-performing loans 

and advances is made in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of 
Pakistan. Advances are written-offwhen thcy are considered irrecoverable. 

6.S Operating fixed assets 

Properties and equipment 

Properties and equipment other than capital work in progress arc stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress is stated at cost. 

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss account applying the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives while 

taking into account any residual values, at the rates given in Note 11.1 to the financial statements. In respect of additions 

(mel deletions to properties and equipment, full month's depreciation is cJwrgeci 011 additions and no depreciation is 

charged in month of disposal. 

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods arc reviewed and adjusted, if required, at each reporting period. 

ifYfJ­



6.6 

6.7 

(,.8 

Normal maintenance and repairs arc charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major repairs and 
improvements are capitalized. 

Gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets is taken to profit and loss account for the year. 

Intangible assets 

lntangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Amortization is charged on straight-line method, by taking into consideration the estimated useful lives of intangible 
assets, at the rates given in note 11.3 to the financial statements. These are amortized on prorate basis i.e. full month's 

amortization is charged on additions and no amortization is charged in the month of disposal. 

Impairment 

At each balance sheet date, the Branch reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any 
indication otimpainucnr. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated. Recoverable 
amount is the higher or fail' value less costs to sell and value in use. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the 

carrying amount or an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss account 

for the year. 

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised recoverable 

amount but limited to the extent of the amount which would have been determined had there been no impairment. 

Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as income. 

Taxation 

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the profit and loss account, except to the 
extent that if relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Current 

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with tlte prevailing laws 

or taxation on income earned. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to 

apply to the profits for the year at enacted rates. The charge for the current year also includes adjustments. where 
considered necessary relating to prior years) arising from assessments finalized during the year for such years. 

Deferred 

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all material temporary differences between the 

cnrrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax base. Deferred tax is recognized 

based 011 the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using the tax 

rates enacted at the reporting elate, expected to be applicable at the time of realization 01' settlement. 

Deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits would be available against 

which the asset is utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that the related ((IX benefits will be realized. 

Starr retirement benefit' 

ncfineil benefit plan 

The Branch operates an approved funded gratuity scheme, administered by the board of trustees for all its permanent 

emplOyee:.; who have completed 5 years ofscrvice . Provision is made in accordance with the actuarial recommendations. Orr: valuation is carried alit periodically lIsing "Projected Unit Crcclit Method". 



The above benefits are payable to staff at the time of separation / retirement from the Branch's services subject to the 
completion of qualifying period of service. 

Actuarial gains and losses 

All actuarial gains ane! losses arc recognized immediately through other comprehensive income in order for the net 
gratuity asset or liability recognized in the statement of financial position to reflect the full value of plan deficit or 

surplus. 

Past service cost 

All past service costs arc recognized in profit or loss immediately as they occur. 

Defined contribution plan 

The Branch also operates a recognized provident fund scheme, administered by the board of trustees, for 'all its' 
permanent employees to which equal monthly contributions arc made by both the Branch and the employees at the rate 

of 1:?.)~1J of the basic salary. 

Eml,loyces' compensated absences 

Fmployccs' entitlement to annual leaves is recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for estimated 
liability for annual leaves as a result of service rendered by the employee against uri-availed leaves upto the reporting 

date. 

6.9 Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the Branch has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be 

made. Provisions arc reviewed at each reporting dote and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

G.I0 Revenue rccognition 

Mark-up I return on advances and investments is recognized on time proportion basis using effective interest method 
except mark-up / interest on non-performing advances which is recognized on receipt basis, in accordance with 
Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank ofPakistan. 

Fcc, commission on letters of credit and guarantees and brokerage income is recognized on accrual basis and / or when 
the services arc rendered, as the case may be. 

Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive dividend is established. 

G.l1 Foreign currencies 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies arc translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates 
prevailing at the reporting elate. 

Forward foreign exchange contracts, other than those relating to foreign currency deposits, are valued at the rates 
applicable '(0 their respective maturities. Exchange gain or loss is included in profit and loss account for the year. 

G.12 Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of cash now statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of: 

~ Cash ,HId balances with treasury banks 
- Balances with other banks 

£?;14
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6.13 Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc set-off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there 
is a leg:dl)' enforceable right to set off and the Branch intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and 
settle (he liabilitiessimultaneously, 

6.J4 Ftuuuctal instr-uments 

An financinl assets and liabilities are recognized <It the time when the Branch becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual right to the cash flow from the 
financial assets expires or is transferred. financial liabilities arc derecognized when they me extinguished i.c. when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any loss On derecognition of the financinl assets 
and financial liabilities is taken to profit and loss account directly. Financial assets carried on the Statement of Financial 
Position include cash and bank balances, lendings to financial institutions, advances and certain receivables; and 
financial liabilities include bills payable, borrowings, deposits and other payablcs. The particular recognition methods 
adopted for significant financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated 

with these assets and liabilities. 

Derivative (inancial instruments are recognized at their fair value on the date at which a derivative contract is entered 
into. These instruments are marked to market and changes in fair values are taken to the profit and Joss account for the 

year. 

<I. t 5 Acceptu nees and ot her eon tingent lia bilities 

Acceptances comprise undertakings by the Branch to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The Branch expects 
most acceptances to be simultaneously settled with the reimbursement from customers. Acceptances are accounted for as 
orr"balance sheet transactions and are disclosed as contingent liabilities and commitments. Other contingencies are 
recognized and disclosedunless the probability of an outflow of resources embodying benefits nre remote. 

6. t 6 Borrowings! deposits and their cost 

a) Borrowings / deposits are recorded at the proceeds received. 

b) Borrowings / deposits cost are recognized CIS expense in the period in which these are incurred. 

6. J7 Head OITiee adminisn-ative expenses 

The administrative expenses allocated by the Head Office are charged to the profit and loss account. 

6.18 Sq~lIl('nt reporting 

An operating segment is a component ofan entity that engages in business activities, from which it may earn revenues 
and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to 
makes decision about resources to be allocated to the segment and assesses its performance and for which discrete 
financial information is available. Segment information is presented as per the guidance of SOP. 

Business .\'{'WlIlful.\' 

Tradillg atul sales 

It includes fixed income, foreign exchange transactions, fundings, own position securities, lendings and borrowings. 

Retott hanking 

It includcs deposits find banking services. 

I}Yfr 



Cotntnercial banking 

Commerciul banking includes export finance. trade finance, short term and long term lendings, bills discounting, letters 

ofcrcdit, acceptances and gunrantees. 

Payments and settlements 

It includes payments and collections, funds transfer, clearings and settlements. 

GeogI'll!," teatsegment 

These financial statements represent cpcrntious of Karachi Branch only and all assets and liabilities represent 

transactions entered by the Karachi Branch. 

2015 201~ 

Note (Rupees ill '000) 

7.	 CASII AND BALANCr:S WITH TREASURY BANKS 

[JI hand 

Local currency 4,556 11,785 

Foreign currencies 6,276 11,864 

With State Bank ofPakistan in 

Local currency current account 7./ 301,973 216,244 

Foreign currency current account 7.2 14,664 14,068 

Foreign currency deposit accounts 7.3 49,528 45,989 

I-1C<lt! Office capital account /9 3,856,160 3,716,072 
4,233,157 4,016,022 

7.1	 Til is represents current account maintained with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) under the requirements 0 f section 22 
(Cash Reserve Requirement - CRR) of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962. 

7.2	 As per nSf) Circular No. 14 dated 21 June 2008, cash reserve of 5% in USD is required to be maintained with the SBP 

011 deposits held under the Ncw Foreign Currency Accounts Scheme (FE-25 deposits). 

7.3	 This represents Special Cash Reserve of 15% maintained with SBP in US dollars under the rcquiremeut ofBSD Circular 

No. 14 dated 21 June 2008 and US Dollar settlement account maintained with SSP to facilitate USD clearing. Profit 
rates on these deposits are fixed by SBP on a monthly basis. The SOP has not remunerated these deposit accounts during 

the year. 

2015 2014 
Note (Rupees ill '000) 

8.	 BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 

In Pakistan
 

III deposit accounts
 

Outside Pakistan 
In deposit accounts 8./ 127,674 9,643 

127,674 9,643 

8.1	 These represent balances with branches of the Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Limited outside Pakistan. These carry 

111<11'kll[1 at the rate orO.08% to \.25'% (20 Iif: 0.07% to 1.75%) per annum. 

(hf 



2015 2014 

Note (Rupees in '000) 

9.	 LENDINGS TO FINANC[AL [NSTlTUTIONS 

Repurchase agreement [endings 9.1 & 9.4 3,041,212 1,'108,414 
Call money lending 9.2 700,000 

3,74[,2[2 1,408,414 

9.1	 These carry mark-up at rates ranging from 5.5% to 6,5% (2014: 8.5% to 9.7%) per annum having maturity period upto six 

months (20 14: six months). 

9.2	 These carry mark-Up rates ranging from 6% to 6.5% (2014: Nil) per annum having maturity latest by 6 January 2016. 

9.3	 Particulars or Icndings 

In local currency 3,741,2/2 1,408,414 

111 foreign currencies 
3,741,212 1,408,414 

9.4	 Securities held as collntcral against lendings to flnauclal institutions 

2015 2014 
Held hy Further Total Held by Further Total 

Branch given as Branch given as 

collateral collateral 

-------------------------------------- (R upees in' 000) -------------------------------------­

rV!<ll'kt..:! Treasury Bills 3,041,212 3,041,212 1,408,414	 1,408,414 

9.4.1 Marker value of securities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions amounted to Rs. 3,054.75 million 
(201'1: Rs. 1,426 million). 

2015 2014 

Nole (Rupees in '000) 
10.	 ADVANCES 

Loons. cash credits, rnnning finonces. etc. 
III Pakistan 2,589,~96 LI01 
Outside Pakistan 

2,589,396 2,257,101 
Net investment infinance tease 

III P:lkislan
 
Outside Pakistan
 [_~I 
BUll' discounted and purchased (excluding treasury bills] 

Payable in Pakistan	 - ­[	 ]Payable oll'~ide Pakistan	 ­II 
Advances - gross 

Provision for non-performing advances 
Advances - net of provision 

10.2 

~~-~ 

2,589,396 

2,589,396 

2,257.101 

2,257,101 

fYr/r
 



2015 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 

10.1 Pnrticulars ofadvances 

10.1.1 In local currency 2,589,396 2,257,101 
In foreign currencies 

2,589,396 2,257,101 

10.1.2 Short term (for upto one year) 2,310,836 2,087,944 
Long term (for over one year) 278,560 169,157 

2,589,396 2,257,101 

10.2 Since there is no non-performing loan, 110 provision is required. 

10.3 Particulars of loans and advances to General Mauager, executives or officers, etc. 

Debts clue from General Manager, executives or officers of the Brauch or anyone of them either severally or jointly with 

any other person as per the terms of their employment. 

2015 2014 

Note (Rupees iu '000) 

Balance at 0 1 January 8,397 6,883 

Loans granted during the year 12,535 4,782 
Repayments during the year (4,593) __ (3,268) 
I1a1<lI1cc at 31 December 16,339 8,397 

II. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS 

Properties (I'ne! equipment 11./ 49,908 55,409 
Intangible assets 

W;J­
11.3 11,534 

61,442 
15,129 

70,538 



11.1 Properties and equipment 

2015 

Cost Accumulated depreciation Carrying Rate of 

As at Additions / As at As at Charge for­ AS:I( value as at depreciation 
I January (dispusats) Adjnsrmenrs­ 31 December Ldanuarv the ycar ? Adj us unents" 31 December 31 December 

2015 2015 2015 (011 disposal) 2015 2015 % 
•••---------------------.---------------------.------ (Rupe esin '000) ---.--------------.-- -.---- ----.-.------------•. ---.•--

Aherarions in leasehold premises ;8,662 305 (3,135) 45,832 35,763 1,;83 (16) 37,230 8,602 10 

Building on leasehold premises 819 819 819 819 5 

Furnlru rc and fixtures 11,015 319 11,334 5,493 700 91 6,284 5,050 10 

Computer equipment 

Electrical equipment 

Vehicles 

38,884 

24,146 

38.321 

161,8;7 

2,180 
(1,70;) 

2,623 
(2,829) 

5,195 
(5,656) 
10,303 

(10,189) 

(4,419) 

7,508 

(72) 

201 

34,941 

31,;;8 

37,788 

162,162 

28,;60 

18,680 

17,223 

-----w6,438 

3,001 

(1,703) 

3,482 

(2,642) 

7,084 

(5,656) 
15,750 

(10,001) 

(1,032) 

i52 

2iZ 

67 

28,726 

20,272 

18,923 

112,254 

6,215 

11,176 

18,865 

49,908 

20 

20 

20 

.. These cInOU,HS represent adjustments made during the year to reconcile fixed assets register with the general ledger ofthe Branch. 

2014 

Cost Accumulated depreciation Carrying Rate of 
As at Additions I As at As at Charge for As at value as at depreciation 

I January (disposals) 31 December I January the year I 31 December 31 December 

2014 2014 2014 (on disposal) 2014 201; % 
------- ---------------------- (Rupees in '000) ____~ __~~.N~ N ________________N ___

Alterations in leasehold premises	 44,409 4,253 48,662 34,390 1,373 35,763 12,899 10 

Building on leasehold premises 819 819 819 819 5 

Furuiture and fixtures 9,909 2,028 11,015 5,401 676 5,493 5,522 [0 
(922)	 (584) 

Computer equipment	 33,213 6,478 38.884 25,037 4,230 28,460 10,;24 20 
(807) (807)
 

Electrical equipment 20,537 4,601 24,146 16,618 3,047 18,680 5,466
 20 
(992)	 (985) 

Vehicles	 46,000 38,321 18,235 6,667 17,223 21,098 20 
(7,679) (7,679)fJt(tr 

154,887 17,360 161,847 100,500 15.993 106,438 55,409 
(10,400) (10,055) 



11.2 Disposals offlxcd assets during the year 

.vccumulared Carrying
Cost Sate proceeds ~ lode of disposal Pa rtlculnrs of Buyers 

Jcprcclarton value 

-----.-~.•••••••_•.•_. •__....••._.•_. .•. • .•.•.. (Rupeesin '000) .-.--.-...--.------.---.-.•-.-------.- ...--------------••••--••.------.--.-­

Computer equipment 

hems having book value ofless 

than Rs. 150,000 or cost of 

less than Rs. 1,000,000 

Miscellaneous items ],704 1,703 [,4 Quotations Different buyers 

Electrica I equipment 

hems having book value ofless 

than Rs. 150,000 or COSl of 

less than N. i,OOO,OOO 

Miscellaneous items 2,829 2,642 [87 8] Quotations Different buyers 

Ychtcles 

Items having book value of less 

than R...·. 250,000 or cos! of 

less than Rs. 1,000,000 

Miscellaneous items 5,656 5,656 4,288 Branch's policy Different buyers 

Tota.l 10,189 10.001 188 4,503 

2014 7,679 7,679 2,050 

11.3 Intangible assets 

As at 
1 January 

Cost Amortization Carrying 

As at As at Charge for As at value as at 
Additions 

31 December 1 January the year 31 December 31 December 

----------.------------·-------------------·-(Rupces in '000)---------------------------­

Rare of 

amortization 
% 

Computer softwarcs 2015 24,988 301 25,289 9,859 3,896 13,755 11,534 20 

Computer sotrwares 

;Jt-!/r 
20]4 14,859 10,129 24,988 7,[ 95 2,664 9,859 15,129 20 



I J.4 The !ilir values or building and equipment as pCI' the management estimate are not materially different IhHJl the carrying 

amounts except for the building on leasehold premises in PEenS whose value as per management's estimate is Rs, 100 
million as lit 31 December 2015 (2014: Rs. 85 million). 

2015 2014 
(Rupees in '000) 

11.5	 The costs of fully depreciated nnd amortized 

assets that are still in usc aTC as follows: 

AIteration in leasehold premises 31,249 31,027 

Building Oil leasehold premises 819 819 
Furniture and fixture 4,444 4,085 

Computer equipment 22,303 17,164 

llcctrical equipment 13,714 13,071 

Vehicles 3,148 7,010 

Intangible assets - computer softwarcs 5,783 5,783 
81,460 78,959 

12. OTllER ASSETS 

Income I mark-up accrued in local currency 52,893 72,199 

Income / mark-up accrued in foreign currency 
Current tax (payments less provision) 445 

Advances, deposits and prepayments 15,282 9,741 
Unrealized gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 184 
Stationery and stamps in hand 462 917 
Others 1,664 347 

70,485 83,649 

13. CONTINGENT ASSETS 

Then: were no contingent assets of the Branch as at 31 December 20 15 and 31 December 2014. 

14. lllLLSPAYAIlLE 

In Pakistan 6,211 4,561 
Outside Pakistan 

6,211 4,561 

15. BORROWINGS 

In Pakistan 
Outside Pakistan 1,409,814 602,899 

1,409,814 602,899 

15.1 Purficubus of borrowings with respect to currencies 

In local currency 

III foreign currency 1,409,814 602,899 
!,i09,814 602,899(HF 



--

15.2 

15.2.1 

16. 

16.1 

17. 

Details of borrowings secured IUl1sccurcd 

Srcnred 

Repurchase agreement borrowings 

Export refinance scheme 

Unseenred 

Call borrowings 

Inter office borrowings 

2015 2014
 
Nole (Rupees iu '000)
 

'---------II - I 

1,409,~j4 I
/5.2./ 602,899 
1,409,814 602,899 
1,409,814 602,899 

months (2014: 0.31 % to 0.370/0 per annum having maturity 11ptO six months). 

DEPOSITS AND OTHElI ACCOUNTS 

Customers 

Fixed deposits 

Savings deposits 

Current accounts - remunerative 
Current accounts - non-remunerative 

Fluunclal lustltutions 
Remunerative deposits 
Non-remunerative deposits 

Purticulat-s of'dcposlts 

III local currency 
In foreign currencies 

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - NET 

Taxable temporary differences on 
Accelerated tax depreciation 

Deductible temporary differences 011 

Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan 

Rcroncltlution ofdeferred lax assets / (liabilities) 

Opening balance 

Rcrogn iced in profit and loss account 
Rccngulscd on Other Comprehensive lncomc 

Closing balance 

These borrowings are subject to mark-up at (he rates ranging from 0.47% to 0.81% per annum having maturity upto six 

7,303 

(1,363) 

5,9'10 

(1,376) 

8,028 

(712) 
5,940 

2015 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 

4,388,800 

243,360 
193,303 
384,596 

5,210,059 

2,450,501 

171,] 15 

324,028 
320,723 

3,266,367 

13,2591 [ 
13,259 

4,832 

4,832 

5,223,318 3,271,199 

5,028,796 3,131,104 
194,522 140,095 

5,223,318 3,271,199 

5,420 

(969) 

4,451 

5,940 

(1,883) 

394 
4,451 

-«
 



2015 2014 
Note (Rupees in '000) 

18.	 OTHER L1AnILITIES 

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency	 29, I 64 27,605 

Mark-up I return / interest payable in foreign currency	 1, I 15 447 

Unearned commission on guarantees	 8,490 16,279 

Accrued expenses	 8,247 6,970 

Unremitted head office expenses	 85,462 48,212 

Current taxation (provision less payments)	 12,856 

Payable to defined benefit plan	 29.4 2,120 1,351 

Unrealizedloss on forward foreign exchange contracts	 12,703 

Provision against collateral	 3,632 3,632 

Provision for employees' compensated absences	 3,920 3,720 

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund	 4,136 4,383 

Others	 2,577 3,726 

161,719 129,028 

19.	 HEAD OFFICE CAPITAL ACCOUNT 

Capital held as: 

Interest free deposit in approved foreign exchange with the State Dank of Pakistan 

Remitted from Head Office (Japanese Yen 4,419,160,968) 1,704,515 1,704,515 

Revaluation surplus allowed by the State Dank of Pakistan - cumulative 2,151,645 2,011,557 

3,856,160 3,716,072 

19.1	 During the year, the Branch, on instructions of Suf", converted thc capital amount of JPV 4,419.16 million into PKR 
3,856.16 million and deposited the same in Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) Account maintained with SOP in 
accordance with Section 13 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962. 

20.	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMI'.NTS 

20.1	 Transaction - related contingent liabilities 

Includes performance bonds, bid bonds, warranties, advance payment guarantees, shipping guarantees and standby 
letters of credit related to particulnr transactions issued in favour of 

2015 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 

Government 1,647,409 2,022,749 
Others 129,495 161,731 

1,776,904 2,184,480 

20.2	 Trade-related contingent liuhllifios 

Letters of credit	 168,404 247,370 

Acceptances	 235,429 85,736 

20.3	 Other contingencies 

CLlilll" against the Branch not acknowledged as debt	 9,366 9,366 

;rf~-



20.4	 Commitments to extend eretlit 

The Brauch makes commitments to extend credit in the normal course of its business but these arc revocable 

couunitments and do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn. 

2015 2014 
(Rupees in '000) 

20.5	 Coumunucnts in respect of forward exchange contracts 

Purchase 1,433,296 702,760
 

Sale 20,168
 

The Branch utilizes foreign exchange instruments as a part of its assets and liabilities management activity to hedge its 

own exposure in currency risk. The maturities of above contracts are spread over a period up to six months (2014: six 

months). 

20.6	 Tax related contingencies 

20.6.1	 lncoruc tax assessments of the Branch (except for the tax years mentioned in paragraphs below) have been finalized up to 

and including the tax year 2008, while the returns for the tax years 2010 to 2015 have been filed which are deemed to 

have been assessed under Section l20 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 200 I (unless selected for audit). 

20.6.2	 ln respect of tax years 2004 and 2009, orders for amendment of return were received disallowing of Rs. 2.62 million 

against which appeals had been filed by the Branch before the Commissioner - Appeals who have deleted certain 

disallowances against which the tax department has filed appeal with Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) whereas « 

certain disallowances were upheld against which the Branch has filed appeal with ATIR. Based on the opinion of tax 

advisors of the Branch, the management is confident that the decision in above stated appeals would be in favour of the 
Branch and as such no provision is required to be made in the financial statements. 

20.6,J	 The Branch has filed Reference Appl ication for the assessment year 2002-2003 against the additions under Section 24( I) 

of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) to the Sindh High Court (SHC). The Income tax Appellate Tribunal 
has also referred the References for the assessment years 20 I0-0 I and 2001-02 011 addition under section 24( 1) of the 

Ordinance and Departmental References for the assessment years 1992-93 and 1998-99 respectively on account of certain 

disallowances to the SHe. These involve tax demand of Rs 6.13 million. Based on the opinion of tax advisors of the 

Branch, the management believes that the matters will ultimately be decided in favour of the Branch, Accordingly, no 

provision is required to be made in these finaneinl statements. 

2015 2014 
(Rupees in '000) 

21.	 MARK-UP / RlnURN / INTEREST EARNED 

On loans and advances to 

~ Customers 190,174 255,696 
~ Financial institution 1,397 6,732 

011 deposits with treasury banks and financial institutions 146 108 
On securities purchased under resale agreements 192,385 191,242 
Oil call money lending 34,496 25,744 

'118,598 479,522 
22.	 MARK-VI'! RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED 

Deposits 287,263 348,332 
Exchange cost on funding arrangements 46,249 35,881 
Call borrowings 6 144 
Inter office borrowings 4,201 2,146 
Securities solei uneler repurchase agreements 105 584 

337,824 387.087

('rll/' 



2015 2014 

Note (Rupees ill '000) 

23,	 OTHER INCOME 

Net profit all sale of operating fixed assets 4,315 4,639 

SCI'i1P sale 19 

4,315 4,658 

24. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

Salaries, allowances, etc. 84,424 82,522 

Charge for defined benefit plan 29.8.1 1,895 1,283 

Contribution to defined contribution plan 2,538 2,'122 

Contribution to Employee Old Age Benefit Scheme 202 261 

l'rovixinu for employees' compensated absences 922 1,445 

l Icad office expenses 37,250 27,189 

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc. 30,136 29,896 

Legal 111lt! professional 495 665 

Communications 2,585 3,329 

Repairs and maintenance 5,889 5,117 

Stationery and printing 1,533 3,205 

Advertisement and publicity 329 161 

Donations 24.1 397 388 

Auditorsremuneration 24.2 1,730 ],451 

Depreciation 11.1 15,750 15,993 

Amortization or intangible assets 11.3 3,896 2,664 

Travelling and entertainment 5,458 7,935 

Brokerage and commission 1,541 1,119 

Entcna inmcnt 125 2,294 

Others 4,812 4,376 
201,907 193,715 

24.1	 None of the executives and their spouses had any interest in donation made during the year. Donations have been made 
to the following donees: 

2015	 2014 

(Rupees iu '(00) 

Donations individually equal to 01' exceeding Rs. n.Lmltlfon 

Karachi Japanese School 100 

\Vorld \Vide rund Pakistan 258 

Railway School Colony [30 

100 388 

Donations individually less than Rs. 0.1 million 297 

397 388 

2,'-2	 Auditors' remuneration 

Audit lee 575 525 

Fee for interim review and other certifications 1,060 856 

Out-of-pocket expenses 95 70 

1,730 1,451 

25.	 OTIIER CHARGES 

Penalties imposed by the State Bank or I'akistnn 266 

Workers' Wcltnrc Fund J,334 --~.'!..-
1,33'1 I,G80{Yfr' 



26. TAXATION 

For the year' 

Current 
Deferred 

For the prior year 

Current 

Deferred 

No'" 
2015 2014 

(Rupees iu '000) 

22,932 
(1,883) 
21,049 

25,128 
8,028 

33,156 

8,668 

8,668 
41,824 

(3,~77)11~~-::-:-~ 
~---,(,="3,577\ 

17,472 

26. t Rcln tionxhip between tax expense and accounting profit 

Profit before taxation 

Tax at the applicable tax rate of35 percent 
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable income 

Tax effect of prior year adjustments 

Tax charge for the year 

62,765 

21,968 
(919) 

(3,577) 
17,472 

_ 69,00 I 

24,150 
9,006 
8,668 

41,824 

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and balances with treasury banks 
Balances with other banks 

7 
8 

4,233,157 
127,674 

4,360,831 

4,016,022 
9,643 

4,025,665 

28. STAFF STRENGTH 

Permanent 

On contractual basis 
Branch's own staff strength at end of the year 

(Number) 

41 
2 

43 

45 
2 

47 

Outsourced 28.J 12 12 
TOI,-]l staffstrength 55 59 

2S.1	 Outsourced represents employees hired by an outside contractor I agency and posted in the Brunch to perform various 
tasks / activities of the Branch. 

iHlr 



29. DEFlNtm DENEI'IT PLAN 

29.1 Ccnctnl dcscrtptlou 

The Brunch operates an approved gratuity fund scheme for all its permanent employees, which is administered by the 
Trustees. The Branch's costs ancl contributions arc determined based on actuarial valuation carried out at each year end 
by using Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits arc payable to employees on cessation of employment on the 

following grounds: 

retirement upon attainment of the normal retirement age (58 years).
 

his / her' death in service of the Employer.
 

011 voluntary retirement before normal retirement age.
 

termination of his / her service by the Employer other them for misconduct. negligence, or incompetence.
 

29.2 Number or employees under the schemes 
2015	 2014 

Numbers 

Total staff strength	 41 45 

29.3 Principal actuarial assumptions 

The actuarial valuation is carried out periodically, The latest actuarial valuation Was carried out on 31 December 2015 
based on the Projected Unit Credit Method, using the following significant assumptions: 

2015 2014 

Discount rate	 per annum 9.00% 10.50% 

Expected return on plan assets	 per annum 9.00% 10.50% 

future salary increase rate	 per annum 8.50% 10.00% 

2015 2014 

(Rupees ill '000) 
29.4 The amount recognized ill the statement of financial position 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 15,613 13,442 
l-air value of plan assets (13,493) (12,091) 
Net liahilit)l 2,120 1,351 

29.5 Movement in net liability recognized in the statcmcnt of financial position 

At Januarv 0 I 1,351 551 
Cha: gl3 for the year 1,895 1,283 
Contribution to the fund made during the year (2,518) 
Actuarial (gain) 1 loss recognized in other comprehensive income (1,126) _ 2,035 
Al December J I 2,120 1,351 

;f/t1Jr
 



2015 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 
29.6 Rcconciliarion or the present value of OJ(' defined hcncflt obligation 

Present value oloblignuon at 01 January 
Current service cost 

Interest cost 
Ikn(;lits paid 

Actuarinl loss 
Present value of obligation at 31 December 

29.7 Rcconcilintlou of fair values of plau assets 

rail' value of plan assets at 0 l January 
Expected return on plan assets 

Contribution received during the year 
Benefits paicl 
Actuarial gain / (loss) 
Fair value ofplnn assets at 31 December 

29.8 Defined benefit cost for the year 

29.8.1 Cost rccoguized in profit find loss uccnunt 

Current service cost 

Net interest cost 

29.S.2 Actunrlntloss recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 

Actuarial loss on obligation 
Actuarial (Gain) / loss on plan assets 

2().9 Actual return on plan assets 

29.10 Composition or fair value of plan assets 

Bank balance 

29.11 Sensitivity ann lysis on signifiennt actuarial assumptions 

Discount rate: +1% 
Discount rate: -l % 

Salary increase rate: + I% 

Sill;)!')' increase rate: -1% 
Withdrawa! rates: +10% 
Withdrawal rates: -10% 
1year mortality age set back 
I year mortality age set forward 

f)/ijJ
 

13,442 9,590 

1,753 1,371 

1,341 1,199 

(1,343) 

420 1,282 
15,613 13,442 

1,753 1,371 

142 (88) 
1,895 1,283 

420 1,282 

(1,546) 753 
(1,126) 2,035 

2,745 534 

13,493 12,091 

2015 

Present 
value of 

obligation 
(Rupees in 

'000) 

14,211 

"17,244 

17,384 

14,716 

15,610 

15,617 

15,615 

15,612 



29.12 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation 

2015 
Present 
value of 

obligation 
(Rupees in 

'000) 

Year 1 
Ycar2 

Year 3 
Yell' 4 

Year 5 
Year 6 and above 

662 
701 
858 
937 

1,005 

10,999 

29.13 The estimated charge for the year ending 31 December 20 15 is Rs, 1.75 million (2014: Rs, 1.28 million). 

30. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 

30.1 

The Branch has maintained an employee provident fund and investments out of provident fund have been made in 
accordance with the provisions of seetion 227 of the Companies Ordinance 1984, and the rules formulated for this 
purpose. The salient information of the fund is as follows: 

2015 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 

Employees' Provident Fund 

Size ofthe fund 

Cost / carrying value of Investments made 

Percentage of investments made 

Breakup of invcstmcnt 

Bank balance 

34,732 
34,732 

100% 

34,732 

30,961 
30,961 

100% 

'30,961 

31. COMPENSATION OF GENERAL 

MANAGER AND EXECUTIVES General Managcrs Executivcs 

2015 2014 2015 2014 

------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------------------

ManageriaI remuneration 

Tax borne by the Branch 

Contribution to defined contribution plan 

RCIH, utilities, house maintenance and other allowances 

Others 

12,000 

4,063 

89 
16,152 

14,285 

1,909 
162 

*16,356 

21,999 
9,600 
1,624 

3,470 
375 

37,068 

17,479 

13,152 
1,006 

1,923 
238 

33,798 

--------------------- (NnIII bers) --------------------­

Number of persons *2 18 I I 

•The General Manager and some executives have been provided with free use of the Branch maintained cars and 
household cquipments in accordance with their terms of employment. The General Manager and Deputy General 
Manager has been provided Branch maintained furnished accornodation. 

Executives mean employees, other then the General Manager) whose basic salary exceed five hundred thousand rupees in 

a financial year. 

"This includes remuneration of Ex-General Manager and current General Manager, 
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32. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated with 
sufficient reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding 
market rates tor similar instruments, 

The maturity ancl repricing profile and effective rates arc stated in notes 38.3 and 38.2.3 respectively. 

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities nrc not significantly 

different from their carrying values 

33. IcAIR VALln: lIlE](ARCIIY 

The Branch measures fair values llsing the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the signi Ficancc 0 f the inputs used in 
lnrlkillg the mcasuremcuts: 

Level I: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Levell that are observable for the 
assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e, 
unobscrvab le inputs). 

The Branch does not have any on balance sheet financial instrument that has been carried at fair value. As of 31 December 
2015 the Branch has certain foreign exchange contracts (off balance sheet financial instrument) carried at fair value as 
follows: 

FAm VALUE 2015 

Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total 

....................(Rupees ;/1 '000) .. 
Otf balance sheet financial Instruments 

Foreign exchange contracts - purchase 1,433,296 1,433,296 
Foreign exchange contracts - sale 

FAIR VALIn: 2014 
Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total 

..............(Rupees in '000) ... 
orr balance sheet financial lnstrumcnts 

Forcipn exchange contracts - purchase 702,760 702,760 
Foreign exchange contracts - sale 20,168 20,168 

The valuation techniques used for above instruments are same as disclosed in note 6.1 and 6.11 to these financial 
statements. The Branch's policy is (0 recognize transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels (It the date 
thc event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer occurred. There were no transfers between levels 1 nud 2 
during the year. 

(a) Financial iIistrlllllcnt.'i in level I 

Currently, 110 financial instruments are classified in level I. 

(b) Ftnanciul instruments ill level Z 

Financial instruments included in level 2 comprise of forward exchange contracts. 

(e) Fill;lllri,l! instruments in Ipvl'IJ 

Currcntlv, no financial instruments arc classified in level 3, 
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34.	 SEGMENT DlcTAILS WITH RESPECT TO nUSINESS ACTIVITIES 

The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows: 

2015 

Trading Retail Commercial Payment Others Totol 

and banking banking and 
sales settlement 

.----------------- -------- -----------------(Ru pees ill'000)--- --------------------------------------­

Total income 

'Total expenses 
370,969 1 

(318,137) 
36, 

975 
1l 

(29,188) 
191,571101 

(208,31Jl2J - 1 
4,3 1511 

(2,902)11 

603,830 
(558,537) 

Net iucourc / (loss) 52,832 7,787 (16,739) J,413 45,293 

Scgrucnt assets (gross) 4,14'1,610 10,930 2,666,241 127,674 17,751 6,967,206 

Segment nun performing IOHns 

Segment provision required 

Segment liabilities 4,684,326 296,605 1,690,970 6,211 127,401 6,805,513 

Segment return 011 assets CHOA) 
(%) 6.83% 8.51% 

Segment cost of funds (%) 4.14°;;, 4.79% 5.73% 

2014 

Trading Retail Commercial Payment Others Total 

find banking banking and 
sales settlement 

.--------------------------------------------(RIl pees in '000)--------------------------------------------. 

Total income 
Total expenses 

Net income / (loss) 

Segment assets (gross) 

Segment non-performing loans 

Segment provision required 
Segment liabilities 

Segment return Oil assets 
(ROA) (%) 

Segment cost of funds (%) 

345,144 

~2,352) 
22,792 

1,714,517 

1,729,177 

9.39% 

8.74% 

39.253 
(39,927) 

(674) 

24,060 

255,305 

7.00% 

262, 4280 

(258,026) -

4,402 
2,370,23 I 9,643 

1,933,947 

11.07% 

8.79% 

4,561 90.637 4,013,627 

35. TRUST ACTIVITIES 

The Brauch is not engaged in any trust activity. 
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36. IlEL\TEIJ PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Branch has related party transactions willi its lIead Office, other branches, employees' benefit plans find its executive officers. Details of 

transactions willi related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows: 

Key Management 

[[enc! Office fIIlll Brnnchcs personnel Retirement Benefits 

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 
~~AAAAAAA. __ •• A.A"A ••• ( R11pees in '000) ••__• •••_" " ••_AA••• A._. 

)6.1 Haluuccs 

llq)ll.~ils 

Balance at beginning of the year 4,832 5,229 477 2';79 43,051 33,030 

Placement/deposits during the year 1,536,214 3,944,654 2,671 3,333 11,627 11,916 

Withdrawals during the yen!' (1,527,788) (3,945,05 I) (2,511) (5,'135) (6,454) (1,895) 

Balance at end of the year 13,258 4,832 637 477 48,224 43,051 

Mark-up payable in local ciu-rcncy 11 54 1,285 1,328 

Trnnsacrlcns 1111dng the ye:lI' 

31 December 31 December 31 December 3 (December 31 December 31 December 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

l\'larIHI(l1 return I interest expensed 26 141 2,352 2,555 

Deposits carry mark-up rare ranging from 4% 10 10S% per annum (31 December 2014: 7% to 10.5% per annum), 

36.2 OIlier Iransactlous and balances (including profit nnd loss related n-ansnettons) 

Key management 
Hefld Office mHl Bmnches personllel Rctlremcut Benefits 

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

-----~~~~~ ~~~ A~ ~_~~_~(R II pecs in'000)~~~-~------------~~--~-----------

Balances with other banks 127,674 9,643 

lntcrofficc borrowings 1,409,~14 602,899 

Mark-up payable in foreign currency J,I15 '1'17 

Net payable 10 defined benefit plan 2,120 1,351 

GU<lITmtcL'S issued all behalfof related party 1,616,888 2,933,290 

Tr:lIIS:L{"tiolls during the year 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December H December 31 December 
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Inkl;:",! income nn balances with other banks 19 10 

Interest income 011 inter office lcndiugs 6~~~~114 

interest expense on interoffice borrowings 4,2111 2,1<l6 

Interest expense Oil interoffice deposits 28 33 

Contributiou to retirement benefits 
Approved gratuity fund 2,518[------'--_II : JI : II . II . ~J IContributory provident fund JI II ~,::'IJOII 2,422 

2,538 '1,9~0 

Rcmuucrntion ofkey runnagement personnel 53,220 511.15'1 
=~=== 
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37. CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY 

37.1 Scope of Applications 

The Basel-III Framework is applicable to the Branch and the Branch has adopted the Standardized approach for Credit and 
Market Risk and Basic Indicator Approach for Operational Risk while using the simple approach for Credit Risk 

Mitigation as per SBP guidelines. 

37.2 Capital management 

Objective of capital management: 

The objectives anel goals of managing capital of tile Branch arc as follows: 

to be all appropriately capitalized institution, as defined by regulatory authorities
 
to maintain strong ratings and protect the Branch against unexpected events
 
to ensure the availability of adequate capital so as to enable the Branch to finance its operations
 

Statutory minimum capttal requlrcmcnr and management of capital 

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BSD Circular No.O? dated 15 April 2009 requires the minimum paid up 
capital (free of losses) 1'01' banks I development financial institutions (OPIs) to be raised to Rs. 10 billion rill the year ended 
3\ December 20 13. However, branches of foreign banks operating in Pakistan are also required to comply with the above 
minimum capital requirement prescribed for the locally incorporated banks I DF(s. However, those branches of foreign 
banks whose head offices hold a minimum paid up capital of atleast US $ 300 million (free of losses) and have a capital 
adequacy ratio (CAR) of atlcast R% or minimum prescribed by their home regulator whichever is higher and have 
prescribed number of branches, are allowed to maintain lower amount with prior approval of SBP. In this regard, the 
Branch has obtained SRP's approval to maintain minimum required capital of Rs. 3 billion (free of losses) effective 31 

December 20 10. 

The 1lead Office capital account of the Branch for the year ended 31 December 20 I5 stood at Rs. 3856.16 million and is in 
compliance with the said SBP requirement. In addition, the banks / branches are also required to maintain a minimum 
capital adequacy ratio (CAR) of 10% of the risk weighted exposures of the banks / branches. The Branch's CAR as at 31 

December 20 15 was 83. 73~~) of its risk weighted exposures. 

Cnpttn! Adequacy Ratio 

The capital adequacy ratio of the Branch is subject to the Basel III capital adequacy guidelines stipulated by the State Bank 
of Pakistan through its BPRD Circular No. 06 of 2013 dated. 15 Angust 20l3. These Instructions are effective from 31 

December 2013 in" phased manner with full implementation intended by 31 December 2019. Under Basel III guidelines 
banks I branches of foreign banks are required to maintain the fJllowing ratios on an ongoing basis. 

Phase-in arrangement nnd full hnplemeutation of the minimum capitol requirements 

Rutio Year As on 31 
December 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

CleTI 5.00% 5.50% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 

ADT! 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% l.50% 1.50% 

Tier I 6.50% 7.00% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 

Total Capital 10.00%, 10.00% 10.00% I(l.OOo/" 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 

'CCIl 

~)tal Capital pillS ccn 
O.OOIYo 

10.00'10 

0.00% 0.25% 

10.00.O~:25% 
0.65% 

10.65% 

1.275% 

11.275% 

1.90% 

11.90% 

2.50% 

12.50% 

*(Collsistil'g ofCETI Dilly)
 

Branch's regulatory capital is analyzed into following tiers.
 

Common Equity Tier] capital (Clt'I'I), which includes capital deposited with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and
 
unremitted profits.
 

Additional Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital arc also prescribed by snp but the Branch has no such eligible capital.
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The required capital adequacy ratio (10% of the risk weighted assets) is achieved by the Branch through improvement in 

the assets quality at the existing volume level, ensuring better recovery management and maintaining composition of assets 

with fow risk. The total risk-weighted exposures comprise the credit risk, market risk and operational risk. The Branch has 

complied with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the year. further, there has been no material change 

in the Branch's management of capital during the year. 

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of risk weights classified according to the nature of and 
ref-lecting nn estimate of credit, market and operational risks associated with each asset and counterparty, taking into 
account any eligible collateral or guarantee. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance sheet exposure, with some 

adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of potential future exposure. 

The nranch will continue to maintain the required regulatory capital either through its risk management strategies or by 

increasing the capital requirements in line with the business and capital needs. 

The Branch calculates capital requirement for credit, market and operational risks using the methodology prescribed by 
SOP. H:tll](ing operations arc categorized as either trading book or banking book and risk weighted assets arc determined 
according to specific requirements of the State Rank of Pakistan that seck to reflect the varying levels of risk attached to 

. . 
assets and off-balance sheet exposures. 

The Branch calculates capital requirement as per Bnscl lll regulatory framework, using the following approaches: 

Crcelit risk: Stnndartlizcd approach
 

Market risk: Standardized approach
 

Operational risk: Basic indicator approach
 

The Branch uses the ratings issued by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) and JCR-VIS Credit Rating 
'Company Limited OCR-VIS) for its local currency exposures and ratings issued by Moody's, S&P, and Fitch for its 
foreign 'currency exposures. These External Credit Assessments Institutions (ECAIs) have been approved by the State 

Bank of Pakistan. 

Typcs of exposures and ECAls Used - 20 15 .JCI~-VlS PACRA Moody's, 

Types of exposures (Local (Local S&P, and 
Currency) Currency) Fitch 

(Foreign 

Currency) 

Corporate x 
Itnnks x x x 

The Branch prefers solicited ratings over unsolicited ratings at <111 times, owing to the greater degree of accuracy (in 
general) associated with solicited ratings as compared to unsolicited ratings. Unsolicited ratings may only be used in cases 

where II solicited rating is not available. 

The alignment of the Alphanumerical scale of each agency used with risk buckets is as per the instructions laid down by 
SliP under Basel III requirements, 

37.2.1 Leverage Ratio 

The State Bank of Pakistan (SRP) through its BPRD Circular No. 06 of 2013 has issued instructions regarding 
implementation of parallel run of leverage ratio reporting and its components from 31 December 20t3 to 31 December 

2017, During this period the final-calibration, and any further adjustments to the definition, will be completed, with a view 

to set the leverage ratio as a separate capital standard on 31 December 2018. Banks are required to disclose the leverage 

ratio from 31 December 20 15. 

The Basel Jlf leverage ratio is defined as the capital measure (the numerator) divided by the exposure measure 

(tbcdcnominator), with this ratio expressed as a percentage: 

l.cvc.ugc Ratio T!~xJ_s:_<\pitaL(~Ut~E.l_91'}!e{1 d~~Jll.ctiOll s)
 

Total Exposure
 

As at 31 December 20 15, Branch's leverage ratio stood at 25,96% which is well above the minimum requirement' of3.0% 
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37.3 Capilal Adequacy Ralio (C-\R.) 

Conunou Equity Tier Lcapita! (CRTl): Instruments and reserves 

Fully Paid-up Capital/ Capital deposited with S[3P 
2 Balance ill Share Premium Account 

3 Reserve for issue ofHcnus Shares 
il DIS<,;Ollill Oil Issueof shares 

5 General/ Statutory Reserves 
6 O'lin/(L.os~;,;:» on derivatives held <IS Cash Flow Hedge 

7 Unanpropnutctvunrcmiued profits/ (losses) 
8 Minority Interests arising from CETI capitul instruments issued to third parties by consolidated bank 

subsidiaries (amount allowed in CETI capital ofthe consolidation group) 

9 CET I bcrorc Regulatory Adjustments 

10 Total rCt~lIL:lllry adjustments applied to CETI (Note 37.3.1) 

II COlIIllWII I':quity Tier I 

A(ldiliollal Ttcr I !AT 1) Cnpjfal 
12 QIl:lli fying,Additional Ticr-t capital instruments plus any related share premium 

13 ofwhic!l: Classified as equity 

I,] 01" which: Classified as liabilities 
15 Additional Ticr-t capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated subsidiaries (amount allowed 

ill group AT I) 
\6 of which: instnuncnt issued by sllb,~idiaries subject 10phase alit 
17 ATt bclorc reg:ufatory adjustmcllts 
J S Total rcgula1my adjustment applied to AT \ capital (Note 37.J.2) 

19 Additional Tier I capital after regulatory adjustments 
20 l\dditi01WI 'Ftcr I capital recognized for capita! adequacy 

21 Tjer- I Capilll! (CI<:Tt + udmisxihlc AT1) (11+20) 

TiCI" 2 Capilal 
22 QU<l\i fyilW Tier 2 capital instnuuents under Basel Ill plus any related share premium 

23 Tier 2 capital instruments subject to phaseout arrangement issued under pre-Basel J rules 

24 Ticr 2 capital instruments issued to Ihird parties by consolidated subsidiaries (amount allowed in nroup tier 
2) 

25 of which: illStnllllents issued by subsidlnrles subject to phase out 

26 General provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to maximum of 1"25% of Credit Risk Weighted 

Asscrs 
27 Revaluation Reserves (net of'raxes) 

28 of\\I1;cll: Revaluation reserves on fixed assets 

29 of Which: Unrealized gains/losses 011 AFS 

30 Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves 

J I Uudisclcscd'Other Reserves (iran}') 
32 T2 hcfurc regulatory adjustments 

3J Total regulatory adjustment applied 10 T2 capital (Note 37.3.3) 

3:1 Tier 2 capital (T2) after regulatory adjustments 

35 Tier 2 c,lpilal recognized for capital adequacy 

36 Pori ion of Additional Tier I capita! recognized in Tier 2 capital 
37 Tol;,1 TiCI' 2 cupi!ul ndmlssible for cnpitnl »dcquucy 

38 TOTAl, C';\I'ITAL ('1'1 + adrulsslulc T2) (21+37) 

39 TIII;lIlH~l( Weighted Assets (RWA) (Note J7.6) 

Capital Ratios and hulfcrs (in percentage nf risk "vcightcd assets) 
,10 CKrJ to total RWA 

41 Ttcr-I capltalto tnlal nWA 

'12 Tutal vupi!n! to total RWA 

43 Ilank specific buffer requirement (minimum CETI requirement plus capital conservation buffer plus any 
other IIIIITer requirement) 

:1·1 of which: capilal conservation buffer requirement 

,15 of\\·hidl: countercyclical buffer requirement 

46 of'whicb: f)~Sfl) or G-SH3 buffer requirement 
!17 CE-II (l\"dil;lblc (0 meet buffers (as a pcrccnrugc of risk weighed assets) 

l\al;ollaJ mlnlmum cnpiral requirements prcscrtbcrl by SllP 
,IX eF.TI minimumratio 

,19 Ticr I minimuru ratio 

J1 ~() Toralrnililallllinillllllll rutin 

f}AI'A 

JI December 31 December 
2015 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 

3,856,160 3,716,012 

""" " ",;" I 
'----;c;~=J L-. . 

4,017,65J 

__--'.0,343 

4,007,5JO 

J,83 1,740 

S122 
3,816,61 I 

: 1 : I 

, Jj
 
4,007,510 3,816,611 

· 
· 

· 
- -

-
- -
- -
-

4,007,5JO 

4,786,420 

8J.73% 

83.7J% 

8J.7J% 

3,816,611 

3,987,426 

95,72% 

%,72% 

95.72% 

~~~6,~"0::';";'~(1 5.50% 

~~~7,51)l~~_ 7'(IO'V.~ 

10,25% 10.00'1" 



3J Dccemcbcr 2015 31 Dcccmcbcr 2014 

R('gulatory Atljll~tl\lrllts and Addltlonal Iutormntlou 

37.3.1 C'0ll11110n rquity Tier l capital: Regulatory adjustments 
I Goodwill (net ofrelated deferred tax liability) 

2 All (\I her intaugibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability) 

1 SJ1(lr(/~l1J in provisions against class! ficd assets 

'\ Deferred tax assets tlUlt rely on future profitability excluding 
those arising from temporarydifference:') (net of related lax 
liability) 
Defined-benefit pension fundnet assets 

6 Rcciprocu! cross holdings in CETI capital instruments of 
banking, finuncinl and insurrmcc entities 

7 Cil:;!\ Ilow hedge reserve 

8 Investment in own shares/ CFTl instruments 
<J Securitization gain on sale 

\0 Capilal short lull of regulated subsidiaries 

II Deficit on account of revnluauou from bank's holdings of fixed 
assets! AFS 

\2 Iuvcsuucnts in the capital instruments of banking, financial anti 

insurance cntiues that arc outside the seope of regulatory 
consolidution, where the bank docs not own rnore than 10%;of 
the iSS1H:d share capital (amount above 10% threshold) 

IJ	 Signiflca»t investments in the conunon stocks of banking, 

Financiol and insurance entities that nre outside the scope of 
reglll;lll!ly consoticlation (amount above 10% threshold) 

H	 Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount 
above 10% threshold, net of related lax liability) 

15	 .uuount exceeding 15% threshold 

\6 of which: significant investments in the common stoeks of 
finillicial entilies 

\7 or whkh: deferred tax assets nrising nom temporary differences 

18 Nauonu! specific regulatory ndjnstmcnrs applied to CETI capital 

\9 lnvesuncnts in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit 
20 Any other deduction specified by S8P (mention details) 

21 Adjustment to (TTl due to insufficient ATI and Tier 2to cover 

dcducuons 

22 Tot»! rtglll:llol·Y adjustments applied to CETI 

37.3.2	 Ad difinunl Tlcr-I & Ttcr-t Capital: regulatory adjustments 

2J lnvesuncut ill mutual fund;; exceeding the prescribed limit [SSP 
spcci Fie adiustmcnt] 

2,1	 In\'(':$ln1<::111 in own ATl capital instruments 

25	 Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier I capital 

in..tnuucnts of ball king, financial and insurance entities 
2(,	 IJ1VC~(1I1ClltS in the capital instruments of banking, financial aml 

insuruuce entities that arc outside the scope or regulatory 

consolidation, where the bank docs not own more than 10% of 
the is-an-d share capital (amount a!J(lVC 10% threshold) 

27	 Signi nc.ou investments in the capitn! insnumcnrs of banking, 

financial and insurance entities tll;lt arc outside the scope of 

regulatory consolidation 

28	 Portion or deduction <lppl inl 50:50 to Tier-! and Ticr-Z capital 
based on pre-Basel Hl trcatmcnt which, during transitional 

period, remain subject to deduction from urhliliunal ucr-! capital 

29	 :\djmllliCI\lS to AdditionalTier I due [0 msulficicnt Tier 2 to 
CI")\TI d<.;,iw.:liolls 

Amounts 
Amounts subject

subject to Pre­
Amount	 Amount to Pre- Bnscl II I 

Basel III 
trcatmcu t 

trcntmcut 
------------~~~.~~---~----.-( R II pc esin '0 00)------------~~--~~--.-~--

~ 
-
-
-

-
15,129 

-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - -
- - - -
- -
- - - -
- - - -

- - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - -

- - - -
10,343
., ..... 

15,129
. ­ . _., 

• 

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

-
-

-

- - - -

L 

-

-

-

-

-L 
-

-

- -
- '-----_.:.. ­

30	 Totall'l'glllatory ndjusuucut applied 10 ATI c;\pil~\' 

If'lA·
 



31 Deeemebcr 2015 )] Dcccmcbcr 2014 

Amounts 
Amounts subject

subjcct m P!"C­
Rcgutntory Adjustments lind Additlonul Intormntlon Amount Amount to Pre· llasel III 

Busct III 
treatment 

treatment 
.---- ••••..• -•.•.••••••-c-c-Rupees in '000·---·-----·---------··-·· 

37.3.3 

31 

Tier 2 C'apitnl: rcgutntcry adjustments 
I'll)IIPIl oj"deduction applied 50:50 10 Tier-I and Ticr-2 capital 
b,lS~tI ill) pre-Basel IJl treatment which, during transitional 
pcuod. rcmnin subjectto deduction from ticr-Z capital 

32 

JJ 
]'1 

Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments of banking, 
financial and iusnraucc entities 
Invcsnucut in own Tier 2 capital instnnncnt 
lnvesuucuts in the capital instruments of banking, financial and 
iIlSllT'lIH.;C; entities Ihat arc outside the scope of regulatory 
consolidation, where the bank docs not own more than 10% of 

the L~Sll<:d share capital (amount above 10% threshold) 

]5 Significantir-vcsuncnts in thc eapital instruments issued hy 
bnllkillg, Iilum.:ial and insurance entities that are outside [he 
scope or regulatory consolidation 

36 Total rcgubuory adjustment applied to '1'2 capital 

37.3.4 Additionnl Informnttnu 

37 

(i) 

(ii) 
(iii) 

Rtsk Weighted Assets subject 10 pre- Basel III trcntmcnt 

Risk weighted assets in respect ofuerluction items (which 
during the urmsuioual period will be risk weighted subject 10Pre­
Basel III Treatment) 

of which: deferred tax nsscts 

ofwhich: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 

or which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of 
banking, Iinauclal and insurance eutines where holding is less 
rlum Ii)'Yu of the issucd common share capital of tbe entity 

(iv) ofwhich: Recognized portion ofinvcsuucm ill capital of 
bankinu. financial lind insurance entities where holding is more 
than 10%) or the issued couunon share capital of the entity 

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting) 

- - -

- - -

- - -

- - - -

- -

31 December J I December
 
2015 2014
 

Rupees in '000
 

- -
-

-

- -

38 
39 
40 

Non-xiguificant investments in the capital ofothcc financial entities 
Signi flceut investments in the common stock of flnaocial entities 
Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (nct ofrelated tax liability) 01 -I 
Applicable caps on the luclnslnn of provisions in Tier 2 

,II 

,12 

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of'exposures 
subject 10 standardized approach (prior to application of cap) 

Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standnrdizcd n 
approach 

'13 Provisionseligible for inclusion ill Tier 2 in respect or exposures 
subject to internal ratings-based approach (prior to application of 
Clip) 

'I'l Cup r(Or inclusion of provisionx in Tier 211l1dcr internal ratings­
based approach 

0!lr
 



37.4 Capital Structure Reconciliation 

T:dJlc: ]7,·1.2 (Step 2) 

As.~e/s 

Cash and balances with treasury banks
 
Balanced with olher banks
 

Lending to financial institutions
 
lnvc-uncuts
 

ofwtsich: Non-significant cnpifnl investments in capital ot other 
[mancial institutions exceeding 10% threshold 

0/which: sigfl{(icat/t capitol investments ill financial sector entities 
exceeding regl,latory threshold 

ofwhich: Mutual Funds exceeding regulatory threshold 

ofwhich: reciprocal crosshotdtng a/capital instrument 

ofwhich: a/hers (CliP 2 deductions under Baset tt (50%Ji'om Tier-l and 

50%ji'om Tiel"-2)) 
Advances 

s!lo/"{!h/l in provisions/ excess 0/ total EL amount over eligible 
provisions under !RfJ 

general provisions reflected in Tier 2 capita! 

Fixed Assets 
ofwhich: Goodwill
 

ofwhich: tntangibtes
 
Deferred Tax Assets 

a/which: OTAs excluding 'hose arising ji'om temporary differences 

ofwhich: Dills arisingpam temporary dij](!rences exceeding regulatory 
threshold 

Other assets 
ofwhich: Goodwill
 

ofwliich: Intangibles
 

ofwhich: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets
 
Total assets 

Liabilitj(,~ ..~ Equity 

nilh payable
 
Borrowings
 
Deposits nnd otner accounts
 
Sub-ordinated loans
 

ofwhich: eligible/or inclusion in ATI
 

ofwhich: eligible/or inclusion in Tier 2
 

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
 
Defer red tax liabilities
 

otwtuch: OTLs related to goodwill 

(IlI'lIiell: D7Ls related to intangible assets 

(:/ which: DTLs related to defined pension fund net assets 
ofwhich: other deferred tas liabilities 

Other liabilities
 
Totnl Iinhilitics
 

/J1(fr
 

Bnlnnce sheet as ill
 
published Flnunciat
 

statements
 
As at 31 December
 

2015
 

4,233,157 4,233,157
 

127,674
 127,674
 

3,741,212
 3,741,212 

I 
a 

b 

c 

d 

c 
I 

2,589,396 2,589\396 
I 

f 

g 
61,442 61,442 

j 
k11,534 II,:" I 
h 

70,485 70,485 

j 
k 
I 

10,823,366 10,R23,366 

6,211 

1\409,814 1,409,814I····--;~·'"5,223,318 5,223,318 

III 
, I 

n 

4,451 4,451 

0 

1,191 1,191 p 

q 

161,719J 
6,805,513 6,806,704 
~ 



37.4 Capital Structure Reconciliation 

Balance sheet of the Under regulatory 
Table: 37A.1 (Step 1) pulJlished financial scope of 

statements consolidation 

Assets 

Cash and balances with treasury banks 

Buluuced with other banks 

Lending to financial institutions 
InVCS(ITlCllts 

Advances 

Operating fixed assets 

Deferred tax assets 

Other assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities & Equity 
Bills payable 

Borrowings 

Deposits and other accounts 

Sub-ordinated loans 

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Other liabilities 

Total llnhiltfles 

Share capital/ Head office capital account 
Reserves 

Unappropriated/ Unremitted profit/ (losses) 

Muxuity Interest 

Surplus on revaluation of assets 

Total equity 

Tolallialdlities & equity 

Mit 

31 December 2015 31 December 2015 

-------- (Rupees ill '000) -----.--­

4,233,157 I 4,233,157 
127,674 127,674 

3,741,212 3,741,212 

2,589,396 2,589,396 
61,442 61,442 

70,485 70,485 

10,823,366 10,823,366 

6,211 
1,409,814 
5,223,318 

6,211 
1,409,814 
5,223,318 

4,451 
161,719 

6,805,513 

4,451 
161,719 

6,805,513 

3,856,160 3,856,160 

161,693 161,693 

I 

4,017,853 
10,823,366 

I ~_ -
4,017,853 

10,823,366 

I 



Share capital 
o/H'hich: amount eligible for ('ETI 
ofwhich: amount eligible fbI' ;/ T/ 

Discount (In issue of right shares 

Reserves 

a/which: portion eligible jor inclusion in CETI 'Statutory Reserves 

o(lI'hil''': portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 

Convertible preference shares 
Accumulated Profits! (losses) 
Minoritv Interest 

o/ll'hi('h' portion eligible for inclusion in C/~T!
 

o./whic": portion eligible for inclusion in A T/
 
(!!Il'hich: portion eligibte ]or inclusion in TicrZ
 

Surplus on revaluation ofassets 

ofwbich: Revaluation reserves WI Properly
 

ofwhich: Unrealized Gains/Losses on A FS
 
1/1 mse p( Deficit on revaluation (deduction from eETI)
 

Tut;il liahili!ics I..'\: Equity 

As at 31 December As at 31 December 
2015 2015 

3,856,160 3,856,160 
3,856,l60 3,856,/60 

161,693 161,693 

4,017,853 4,017,853 

s 

u 

v 

w 

x 
y 

z 

an 

ab 

Component of 

Table: 37..l,3 

regulatory 
capital reported by 

bank 
(amount in thousand 

Sourcc based on 
reference number 

from Step 2 

PKR) I 
Conuuun Equity Tier 1 capital (CETI): Instruments and reserves 

I Fully Paid-up Capital! Capital deposited with SBP 
2 Llat.mcc ill Share Premium Account 

3 Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares 

'I General/ Statutory Reserves 
5 Gaill/(Losscs) on derivatives held as Cash Flow I ledge 

6 Unappropriated/unrctnittcd proflts/llosses) 

7 Minority interests arising from CETl capital instruments issued to third 
pmty by consolidated bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in CETl capital of 
the consolidation group) 

H CET I hcfo,re Regulatory Adjustments 

Cnnunun Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments 

9 Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability)
 
10 All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability)
 
11 Sll()llI:dl of provisions against classified nsscts
 

1:Z	 D..::.'tt.'ITCd lax assets that rely on future profifuhiiity excluding those arising 
from temporary differences (net ofrelated tRX liability) 

IJ	 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 
1,1	 Reciprocal cross holdings in Cli'I' I capital instruments 

15 Cnsh flow hedge reserve 
l(i Investment in own shares! CETl instruments 
\"/ Securitization gnin on sale 
\ ~ Cupitnl shortfall of regulated subsidiaries 
II) Deficit on account ofrcvaluntion from bank's holdings of properly! AFS 

20	 luvcsuneuts in the capital instruments ofbanking, financial and insurance 
cntirit-s that arc outside the scope or regulatoryconsolidation, where the bank 
docs not own more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10'1;1 
threshold)

(Ytt:A
 

3,856,160 
(5) 

161,693 

(1I) 

(w) 

(x) 

4,017,853 

OJ- (0) 
(k) • (p)10,343 

(I) 

{(h)-(r) '40% 

«(1) - ('I)) , 40% 

(<I) 

(ah) 

(a) - (ac) . (ae) 



21	 Significant investments in-the capital instruments issued by banking, 
Iimuu-inl und insurance entities that are outside the scopc ofregulatory 
consolidation {amount above 10% threshold) 

22	 Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount above !O% 
threshold, net olrelated tax liability) 

23	 ;\11l0LLfll exceeding 15% threshold 
2,\ ofwhich: significant investments in the common stocks of fiuancial 

entities 

25 of which: deterred lax assets arising from temporary differences 

26 National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET/ capital 

27 Investment ill TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit 
28 Any other deduction specified by snr (mention details) 

29 Regulatory adjustment applied [0 CETI due to insufficient ;\T1 and Tier 2 to 
cover deductions 

30 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CETI (slim 0[9 to 25) 10,343 

Conunun Equity Tier I	 4,007,510 

AdditilllWI Tin 1 (AT t) Capital 

31	 Qualifying Additional Tier- ( instruments plus any related share premium 

32 ofwhich: Classified as equity 
33 of which: Classified as liabilities 
"4	 Additional Tier-I capital instruments issued by consohdntcd subsidiaries and 
.J	 held by third partles (amount allowed in group AT I) 
35 ofwhich: instrument issued by suhsidinrics subject to phase out 
36	 ATl before regulatory adjustments 

(b) - (ad) - (at) 

(i) 

(i) 

(m) 

(y) 

Component of 

Table: 37.4.4 

regulatory 
capital reported by 

bank 
(amount in thousand 

Source bused on 
reference number 

from Step 2 

I'KIn 

Additiollal Tier 1 Capital: regulatory adjustments 

tuvcsuncm in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit (SUP specific 
1 ..7 

udjuxuncnt) 

3X Investment in own AT I capital instruments
 
39 Rcciprocn! cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments
 
·10 Investments ill the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance
 

entities that arc outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank 
(ae)docs not own marc than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% 

threshold) 

"J	 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking,
 
financial and insurance entities that arc outside the scope ofregulatory
 (ael) 
consolidation 

,j:Z	 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital
 
based on pre-Basel Ill treatment which, during transitional period, remain
 
subject to deduction Front tier-! capital
 

ilJ	 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier ( clue to insufficient Tiel' 
2 to cover deductions
 

'1,\ '1'01:11 of Reglilatory Adjustment applied to ATl capital
 
,15 Addirionul Tier I capital
 

<16 Addilioml1 Tier I cnpttal rcccgnizcd for capital adequacy
 

Til"" I Capital (el':TI + admissible ,..\TI)	 4,007,510 

(}ifr
 



~	 " Component of 

I .	 regulatory Source based onr J7.4.5	 capital reported by rcfcrcncc number 
hank 

trum Step 2 
(amount in rhonsnnd I 

PKR ---.J'-- ~_ 

Tier 2 Cap;:al 

tl7 Qun! il)ring Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel III
 
48 Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement from tier 2 (Pre-Basel
 I 

III instruments)
 

119 Tier 2 (;[\I,il:1) instruments issued to third party by consolidated subsidiaries
 

(amount allowed in group tier 2)
 

50 ofwhich: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phose out
 
51 General Provisions or general reserves for 101ln losses-up to maximum
 

or 1.25~··(' ofCredit Risk Weighted Assets
 

52 Revaunuion Reserveseligible lor Tier 2
 
53 olwhich: portion pertaining to Properly
 
54 ofwhich: portion pertaining to AI'S securities
 

55 i-orciuu Exchange Translation Reserves
 

5() Undisclosed/OIlier Reserves (il";lIly)
 

57 "1"2 bclnrc regulatory adjustments
 

Tier 2 Capital: rcgulatci-y ndjusnncnts 

58	 Portion of deduction applied 50:.50 to core capital and supplemcntury capital
 

based on prc-Bascl Hl treatment which, during transitional period, remain
 

subject to deduction from ncr-z capital
 

59 Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments
 
60 Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument
 

61 luvcsunents in the capital instruments of bunking. Financial and insurance
 

cntificx that nrc outside the scope ofregulatory consolidation, where the bank
 

docs not own more thall !0% or the issued share capital (amount above 10%
 

threshold)
 

62	 Signifkant iuvcsuncnts in the capitalinstruments issued by banking,
 

financial "TId insurance entities that arc outside the scope of regulatory
 

consolidation
 

61 Autouut of'Regulatory Adjustment applied to T2 capital
 

6<1 Tier 2 capital (T2)
 

65 Tier 2 capitalrecognized for capital adequacy
 

66 Excess Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capita!
 

67 TotHI Tier 2 capital admissible for capitol ntlequacy
 

TOTAL CAl)ITAL (T1 +- ndmissihlc '1'2)	 4,007,5JO 

~(fi 

_ 

-

(n) 

(z) 

(g) 

portion of (aa) 

(v) 

(ac) 

(a0 



37.5 Mnln Features Regulatory Ca pitnl Instrument 

Main Features 

Issuer 

2 Unique identifier (cg KSE Symbol or Bloomberg identifier etc.) 

3 Governing law(s) ofthe instrument 

Regulatory treatment
 
.\ Transitional Basel III rules
 

:; Post-transitional Basel III rules
 

6 Eligible at solo/ groupl group&solo
 

7 Instrument type
 

8 Amount recognized in regulatory capital (Currency in PKR thousands,
 

as of reporting date) 

9 Par value of instrument 

10 Accounting classification 

II Original elate or issuance 

12 Perpetual or dated 

13 Original maturity date 

l4 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval 

15 Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount 

16 Subsequent call elates, ifapplicable 

Coupons I dividends 

17 Fixed or floating dividendi coupon 

18 coupon rate and any related index! benchmark 

]9 Existence of a dividend stopper 

20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory 

21 Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem 

22 Noncumulative or cumulative 

23 Convertible or non-convertible 

24 If convertible, conversion trigger (s) 

25 If convertible, [lilly or partially 

26 Ifconvertib!e, conversion rate 

27 If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion 

28 If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into 

29 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into 

30 Write-down feature 

31 lfwritc-down, write-down trigger(s) 

32 If write-down, full or partial 

33 Ifwrite-down, permanent or temporary 

34 If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism 

35 Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation (specify instrument 
type immediately senior to instrument 

3() Non-compliant transitioned features 

37 lfyes, specify non-compliant features 

f)rr 

Common Equity 

The Bank ofTolcyo ­

Mitsubishi Uf'J
 

State Bank of Pakistan 

Common Equity Tier I
 

Common Equity Tier I
 

Solo
 

Hearl office capital Rs.
 
(Thousand) 3,856,160
 



37.G [Usl, Wcighll'd ,,\<;~d.~
 

The risk wt:i)-\I!!<:d assets to capital ratio, calculated in accordance with (he Stare Dank ofPnkistuu's guidelines 011 enpilal adequacy was as follows:
 

Capital Rcquirements Risk Wci~hlcd Asscls 

2015 21"< 2015 2014 
~ ••~~•••• ~~~.~~---~.~------( Rtl pccs ill'°°0)~. __ ._--~._-----_. __._._---~~ 

Credil Risk 

Portfolios subject to standardized approach
 

On-Balallce xhc c t
 

Cnsf and Cash Equivalents
 

Claims 011 Government of Pakistan 

(Federal or Provincial Govenuuents) and SBP, denominated in PKR 

Foreign Currency claims Oil SDP arising out of statutory obligations 

ofbank:-; iui'akistan 

Clanus Oil ether sovereigns and on Government of Pnkistnn or 
provincial governments or SOP denominated in currencies other 

than PKR 

Claims on ljnnk lor International Settlements, lnteruatiorml 

Monetary Fund, European Central Bank, <nHI European Community 

C'anns on Multilateral Development Banks 

Clauus 011 Public Sector Entities in Pakistan 

Claims Oil Banks 

Claims, lIetlolllinated in foreign currency, on banks with original 

maturity of:; 1I1OIlths or less 

Claims 011 hanks with original maturity of3 months or less 
dcnonunated in PKR and funded in PKR 

Cluims on Corporares (excluding equity exposures) 

Claims categorized as retail portfolio 

Claims tully secured by residential properly (Residential Mortgage 

Finance as defined ill Section 2.1) 

Past Due loans: 

Listed Equity investments end regulatory cnpitul instruments issued 
by other banks (other than those deducted front capital) held in the 
bankmg book 

Unlisted equity investments (other thanthat deducted From capital) 
held in buuking book 

Signitie<l1l1 investment and DTAs above 15% threshold
 

Fixed assets
 

Claims on all fixed assets under operating tense
 

All other assets (excluding markup receivables)
 

Off-Buluucc sheet
 

Non-market related
 

Market reb ted
 

Equity Evpoxurc Ri.~I, iu the Banl,ing Book 

Mflrkel RLI'j; 

CapItal Requirement for portfolios subject to Standardized Approach 

liltercs! rate risk
 

Equity plhl!ioll risk
 

Foreign F.~dlllllge risk
 

OpetrllioJltl! Ri.l'k 

Cllpil:1I Adequacy Ratios 

CEll (0 IO!;l1 R\V,.\
 
Ticr-! capital to total RW;\
 

Tolal e,lpiwllO tod RW;\
 

l)AII, 

, ­
-

-

-
-
-

12,755 

2,554 

62,310 

251,299 

247 

297 

-

-

-
. 

4,991 

-
1,761 

336,214 267,832 

94,823 8'1,8>131 
352 1311 

95,175 8>1,974 

431,389 352,806 

2 ': 1 7 2,080-=:J
~~ ~J03 ~ 

2,69l 4,183 

4'-1,::'6·1 4 1,754 

478,644 398.743 

2015 

Rcql~ Actual 

G.OO% 83,73% 

7.50% 83,73% 

lO.2S fi;' , 83.73%, 

-Ii 
--

--

--

--
-

--
2,12,851127,549 

1,92925,535 

'-11,991623,0% 

2,512,988 2,304,319 

2,<70 5,147 

2,973 

-

-
-

49,908 55,409 

- -
17,G06 26,134 

-

-

-

-

2",285 

193 

4,199 

230,432 

515 

54 

-

-
-

5,5< I 

2,613 

3,362,125 2,678,321 

[ 948,227 848;134 

3,523 1,308 

%1,750 8<19,7·12 
4,31J,R75 3,528,063 

1
24,169 20,~00 I 

2,738 2.J,IJill 
, -- 41,825.26,907 

__,,-,<4:::5,638 417,538 

4,78G,420 3,o81,'!26 

2014 

Actual~~~I-

5,50% 95,72% 

7.00% 95.72% 

10.00% 95.72% 
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3S IHSK MANAGk:MENT 

The Branch is primarily subject to credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. The General Manager of 

the Branch has the overall responsibility for the management of those risks. The policies and procedures for managing 
these risks arc outlined below. The basic premise of risk control and management is to comprehensively control and 

manage the risks ofthe Branch using a uniform standard approach as much as possible. The objective of comprehensive 
risk control and management is to provide the basis for the achievement of stable profit balanced with risk, achievement 
of an appror'rfate capital structure, appropriate allocation of resources, and other goals, by identifying / recognizing, 
evaluating / calculating, controlling and monitoring / reporting all risks. 

38.1 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of sustaining a loss clue to reduction or termination of the value of assets (including off-balance 
sheet assets), caused by an obligor's deteriorated credit standing or default of agreement. 

The Ur,lllch's credit evaluation system comprises of well designed credit appraisal, sanctioning and constant review 
procedures for the purpose of emphasizing prudence in its lending activities and ensuring quality of assets portfolio. The 
objectives of credit evaluation system Me to keep credit risk exposures within permissible level relevant to the Branch's 
risk capital, to maintain the soundness of assets and to ensure returns commensurate with risk. Special attention is paid to 
the management of non-performing loans ifany, which would be closely monitored both at the Branch's level as well as 
its l lcad Office level. A "Close Watch II mechanism is in function which identifies early warning signals of loans and 
ac!v(\I\CCS becoming non-perfonuing. 

The Branch has implemented its own internal risk rating system for the credit portfolio, as per guidelines of the State 
Bank of Pak istan, which are further approved by the Head Office, Credit ratings by external rating agencies, if available, 
are also considered. 

The Branch constantly examines its total credit exposures and considers analytical and systematic approaches to its credit 
structure categorized by group and industry. 

38.1.1 Conccunatlou of credit and deposit 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party 
to incur a financial loss. Credit risk is monitored, reviewed and analyzed by Asset Liability Management Committee 
(Al.M), which has established credit lines and credit limits to control exposure to counter parties. 

Out of the total financial assets of Rs. 10,746.18 million (2014: Rs. 7,746.96 million), the financial assets which were 
subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 6,513.02 million (2013: Rs. 3,7/)8.93 million). To manage credit risk the Branch 
applies credit limits to its customers and obtains adequate collateral. 

38.1.2 Segmental lnlormation 

Scg.ucntal information is presented in respect of the class of business and geographical distribution of advances, f 

dcposfts, contingencies and commitments. 

fJ41 



-----

38.1.2. I Sl'gIlH~nts by class of business 

2015 

Advances (gross) Deposits 
Conttugeucies and 

Commitmcnts 

(Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent 

ill '000) ('Yo) ill '(00) (%) in '0(0) (%) 

Automobiles (Inc! Transportation 

equipment 624,606 24.12 457,901 8.77 538,107 14.85 

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 1,577,472 60.n 3,503,336 67.07 25,742 0.71 

Construction 14,354 0.27 

Electronics and electrical appliances 474 0.01 

Financial 130,586 5.04 - 3,050,184 84.18 

Individuals 16,339 0.63 286,454 5.48 

Paper and Board 393 0.02 

Wholesale <mel Retail Trade 96,511 1.85 

Others 240,000 9.27 864,288 16.55 9,366 0.26 

2,589,396 100.00 5,223,318 100.00 3,623,399 100.00 

2014 

Advances (gross) Deposits 
Contingencies and 

Commitments 
(Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent 
in '000) (%) in '000) (%) in '000) (%) 

Automobiles and Transportation 

equipment 662,409 29.35 1,455,667 44.50 447,940 13.78 

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 1,310,405 58.06 1,003,399 30.67 35,632 1.10 

Construction 7,807 0.24 

Electronics and electrical appliances 199 0.01 

Financial 565 0.02 2,756,218 84.81 

Individuals 8,398 0.37 253,134 7.74 

Paper and Boartl 275,324 12.20 

Wholesale' [mel Retail Tracie 43,868 1.34 

Othcis 507,125 15.50 10,090 0.31 

2,257,101 100.00 3,271,199 100.00 3,249.880 100.00 

V}(/t­



38.1.2.2 Scgmcnf by sector 

Advances 

(Rupees Percent 
in '(00) CYo) 

2015 
Deposits 

(Rupees Percent 
in '000) (%) 

Contlugcuctcs and 
commitments 

(Rupees Percent 
in '(00) (OAI) 

Puhlic I government 

Pr-ivate 2,589,3% 
2,5S9)W) 

100.00 
100.00 

195 

5,223,123 
5,223,318 

0.01 
99.99 

100.00 
3,623,399 
3,623,399 

100.00 
100.00 

2014 

Advances 

(gross) 

(Rupees 
in '000) 

Percent 
(%) 

Deposits 

(Rupees Percent 

in '000) (%) 

Contingencies and 

commitments 
(Rupees Percent 

in '000) (%) 

Puhlic Zgovernment 
Private 2,257,101 

2,257,101 

100.00 

100.00 

196 

3,271,003 

],271,199 

0.01 

99.99 

100.00 

3,249,880 

3,249,880 

0.00 

100.00 

100.00 

38.1.2.3 Gcogrnphical segment analysis 

2015 
Profit Total Net assets Contingencies 

before assets employed and 

taxation employed commitments 
~---~--------~~---~-------(Rupees in '000) --~~-------------_._~-----

Pakistan 

Asia I'aciftc (including South Asia) 

Europe 

United Stutes of America and Canada 

Middle East 
Others 

62,765 

62,765 

10,823,366 

10,823,366 

4,017,853 

4,017,853 

3,623,399 

3,623,399 

2014 

Profit Total Net assets Contingencies 

before nssets employed and 

taxation employed commitments 

-------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------­

Pakistan 69,001 7,845,367 3,831,740 3,249,880 

Asia Pacific (including South Asia) 
Europe 

United States of America and Canada 

i\.liddlc East 
Others 

69,001 7,845,367 ],831,740 3,249,880 

V'f{
 



38,2 Market risk 

Market risk is the risk of sustaining a loss clue to (\ change in the price of assets or liabilities held (including off-balance 
sheet assets and liabilities) resulting from changes of risk factors like interest rates, exchange rates, equity prices, 
commodity prices and others, Markel liquidity risk is that of sustaining a loss due to inability to trade required quantities 
<It a reasonable level, clue to market turmoil or a Jack of trade volume in the market. 

With the full understanding that market risk is unavoiclnble in the Branch's business activities and that rapid handling of 
it is required, the Branch has a vel)' effective system to manage and control market risks. In managing and controlling 
market liquidity risks, each product's market scale and market liquidity has always been sufficiently considered, to 
prevent any inability to cancel or reduce positions when necessary, 

The [1ranch uses the Standardized Approach to calculate capital charge for market risk as per Basel III regulatory 
framework. Details of capital charge for market risk arc given III note 37.6. 

38.2.1 Forci~ll exchange risk 

Foreign cxcbangc risk represents exposures to changes in the values of current holdings and future cash flows 
denominated ill foreign currencies. The potential far loss arises from the process of revaluing foreign currency positions 
in rupee terms. The Branch's foreign exchange risk is limited to future cash flows in foreign currencies arising from 
foreign exchange transactions and translation of net open position in foreign currencies. Forward contracts are used to 
mitigate foreign exchange risks, the Branch however remains exposed to such risk to the extent of net open position. 

2015 

Pakistan rupee 

United States dollar 

Great Britain pound 

Singapore dollar 

Japanese yen 

[uro 

Other currency 

Vh'1 

Assets Liabilities Off-balance Net foreign 
and Head sheet currency 

Omce capital items exposure 

-------------------------(Ru pees lu '000)------------------------­

10,625,164 9,217,915 (1,433,296) (26,047) 

192,233 1,602,216 1,433,296 23,313 

1,428 1,428 

197 197 

4,255 3,235 1,020 

85 85 

4 4 
10,823,366 10,823,366 



2014 

Assets Off-balance Net foreignLiabilities and 
He"d Office sheet currency 

capital items exposure 

------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------------------------­

Pakistan rupee 4,047,730 3,385,854 (682,592) (20,716) 

United States dollar 76,638 739,937 682,592 19,293 

Great Britain pound 507 507 

Singapmc dollar 95 95 

Japanese yen 3,719,270 3,719,576 (306) 

El1rD 1,124 1,124 

Other currencies 3 ------ ­
3 

7,845,367 7,845,367 

38.2.2 Yield! interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from adverse movements in interest rates. The Asset Liability Management Committee 
CALM) monitors and manages the interest rate risk with the objective of limiting the potential adverse effects on the 
profitability of the Branch arising from fluctuation in the market interest rates and mismatching or gaps in the amount or 
financial assets and financial liabilities in different maturity time bands. ' 

The Branch's interest rate exposure is calculated by categorizing its interest sensitive assets and liabilities into various 

time bands based Oil the earlier of their contractual repricing or maturity dates. 

Ylcld I interest rate risk ill the nanking Book 

The Branch holds financial assets and financial liabilities with different maturities or repncmg dates and linked to 
different benchmark rates, thus creating exposure to unexpected changes in the level of interest rates. Interest rate risk in 

the banking book refers to the risk associated with interest-bearing financial instruments that are not held in the trading 

book of the Branch. 

Repricing gap analysis presents the Branch's interest sensrtive assets (ISA) and interest sensitive liabilities (ISL), 

categorized into various time bands based on the earlier of their contractual repricing or maturity elates. Deposits with no 
fixed maturity dates are included in the lowest, one-month time band, but these are not expected to be payable within a 
one-month period. The difference between ISA and ISL for each time band signifies the gap in that time band, and 
provides (I workable framework for determining the impact on net interest income. 

The Branch reviews the repricing gap analysis periodically to monitor and manage interest rate risk ill the banking book. 
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2014 

EtTect;I'C 

yield ,/ 

interest 

rate 

Financial instruments 

ASSi'ts 

Cash and balances Will' 

trCQSUI)' banks 

Ba\::JiCeS with omcr banks 

Lending to financial institutions 

Advances 

On-e- assets 

0.07% ~ 1.75% 

9% ~ lO.25~o 

4% -1193% 

Liabilities 

Bllis payable 

Borrowings 

Deposits end ocher accounts 

Ozhc: li2bi!irics 

0.31 % - 0.37'% 

nt,-J05% 

On-balance sheet gap 

Off-balance sheet financial insrrurnenrs 

Comrnirments in respect offOf ward exchange 

contracts- purchase 

Commitments in respect offcrward exchange 

contracts - sa!~ 

Offbal<iTICC sheer giJP 

Total yield I interest fisk sensitivity gap 

CU:llubti\C yield I inWfCS! risk sensinviry gap 

!)-r~
 

rum! 

Up:o I 

month 

_____________ • __ • + '+ 

4.016,022 45,989 

9,6~3 9,643 

1,408,:1.14 ~97,5I7 

2,257,101 2,D32,183 

73,776 

7,764,956 2,985,33:: 

,------" r-~ 

3,779,282 

100,484 

2,406,743 

2507,2;7 

478,105 

70:',760 

20,168 

682,592 

478,105 

478,W5 

Over 1 

to 3 
months 

~ , 

438,439 

(:B2,i 18) 

(232,718) 

245,387 

Over .: 
months 10 

6 months 
+-__~ • 

301.449 

1,428 

302,877 

3,030 

3,030 

248,417 

Exposed to '.'o'leldl interest risk 

Over 6 Over 1 Over 2 

months to tal tr- 3 

: year years years 
(Rupeesin 'D.:iO)------·-----·····-+~----··----, 

, 
I 

55,373 

I ­
55373 

I L.-~! 

300,000 

Not exposed 

Over 3 Over 5 Above tv yield / 

<05 to 10 to yeJ.rs imcrcsr 

years years rate 

..----­ -- ----­ ----.---------,-,--,­

nl
-

-


~,175 :,290 396 ' _ 

- -' 73,776 ~'L ,,~ 
1,175 1,290 396 4,043,809 

4,561 

325,555 

J L-.-----=-----....I_ I: 107,015 

437.:31 

~ :')9,923 55,373 z.: 75 [,290 396 3,606,678 

702,760 

(244,9701 

3,447 

109,923 

113,370 

55,373 

168,743 

::,175 

170,918 

1,290 

172,208 

396 

172,604 

20,168 

682,592 

39700331 



Yield risk is the risk of decline in earnings due to adverse movement of the yie.d curve. 

Interest rare risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest rates. 

2015 20\4 
(Rupees in '000) 

Reconciliation to total assets Reconciliation to total liabilities 

Balance as per balance shed lO,823,366 7,845,367 Balance as per balance sheet 

Less: Non-financial assets Less: Non-financial liabilities 
Operating fixed assets 61,442 70,538 Other liabilities 
Other assets 15,744 9,873 Deferred tax liabilities 

77,186 80,411 

Total financial assets 10,746,180 7,764,956 Total flnancial Iiabilitics 

Nfl 

2014 2013
 

(Rupees in '000)
 

6,805,513 4,013,627 

25,482 22,013 
4,451 5,940 

29,933 27,953 

6,775,580 3,985,674 



___________________________________________________

38.3 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is .be risk caused.. among. others by the inability ofthe Branch to settle liabi.ities at due dale. The liquidity risk policy is formulated keeping in view State Bank's guidelines on 

risk rnanageruent and best market practice. In case ofany conflict between any provision of this policy and any regulation tor the time being in force, the regulation in force will prevai I. 

Objectives of our Iiquidity management is to ensure that the Branch is able to honour all its financial commitments on an ongoing basis without (i) effecting the cost of funds (ii) adversely 

effecting ability :o raise funds and (iii) resorting to sale of assets. 

38.3.1	 Maturities of assets and liabilities - based on contractual maturity 
2015 

Total Upto 1 Over 1 Over 3 Over Over 1 Over j Over 3 Over 5 Above 

month t03 toG Gmonths t02 to3 toS ro Iu 10 years 
months months to 1 year years years years years 

,__------,------- (R upees in'0°0) ,----------------------------,-----------,--------------------------- ­

Assets 
Cash and balances with 

treasury banks 

Balances with other banks 

Lending to financial 
institutions
 

Advances
 

Operating fixed assets
 
Other assets 

Liabilities 
Bills payable 

Borrowings 

Deposits and other accounts 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Other Ilahilities 

Net assets 

Head Office capital account 
Unremitted profit 

fJ1ft 

4,233,157 376,997 -
127,674 127,674 -

3,741,212 3,111,986 289,554 

2,589,396 1,444,892 650,337 
61,442 1,715 3,160 
70,485 48,152 12,094	 

---I I 
- --

.339,672 -
85,104 119,556130,503 

13,7999,4804,740 
791,1464,616 

- - ,

lr.,823,366 5,111,416 955,145 479,531 95,730 133,434 

6,211 
1,409,814 
5,223,318 

4,451 

161,719 

6,211 
104,741 

5,142,518 
58 

50,634 

-
209,482 

75,100 
117 

1,130 

-
1,095,591 

700 
177 

2.285 

, 

-
-
354 

103.564 

-
-

5,000 
1,220 

3,979 

6,805,513 5,304,162 285,829 1,098,753 103,918 10,199 

4,017,853 (192,746) 669,316 (619,222) (8.188) 123.235 

3,856,160 
161,693 

4,017,853 

~~ - - 3,856,160 
, . - -

- - - -
61,725 95,728 1,185 366 
11,126 11,928 5,494 -

79 158 ,----158 4,003 
- - -­72,930 107,814 6,83 7 3,860,529 

r-:1i]f ~.Ir -I
 
~~L:JLJ
 

1,111 1,055 486 

71,819 106,759 6,351 3,860,529 



____ ____ ____ ____ _____ ___ _ _ _ _ ___ _ _ __________ __ ___ 

.1ssc(~· 

Cash and balances with 

treasury banks 

Balances wil:1 other banks 

Lending to financial 
institutions 

Advances 

Operating fixed. assets 

OL1er assets 

Liabilities 
Bills payable 

Borrowings 

Deposits and other accounts 

Liabilities against assets 

subject to finance lease 

Deferred tJ.X liability 

Other liabilities 

Net assets 

Head Office capital aCC01.:nt 

Unremitted profit 

Viti 

2014 

Total Lpto I O,'er I Over 3 Over Over I Over 2 

month to3 to 6 6 months w2 te3 

months months to 1 year years years 
A ••• " •• ••• • • "._ • • .--­ - \ I? upees in '000) --_.------ -.- _.--------- ------.

-

299,950 - - -

9,643 - - -

897.5 17 
1 

205,430 305,467 -
2,032,183 292 439 55,030 

2,603 
1 

5,206 7,809 15,618 

68,063 11,286 2,730 343 

I ­4,016,0221 
-9,643 

-L408,414 

-i 
-

-
lO9,924 55,3732257,lOl 

21,913 15,03670,538 

83,649 - -

Cvcr 3 O\'~:' 5 Above 
:'05 to 10 10 years 

years years 
--.-- ---___ ow ­ --­ -._ ••------­ ---­ •__ ____ 

- - 3,716,072 
-- -

- - -
2,175 1,290 

2,339 14 -
-- t,227 

7,845,367 3,309,959 222,214 316,445 70,991 131,837 70,409 4,514 2,304 3,717,694 

4,561 

602,899 

3,271,199 

- II-
5,940 

129,028 

4,561 

100,483 

2,727,298 

-
157 

46,378 

-
200,966 

237,473 

-
312 

11.428 

-
301,450 

1,428 

-
46& 

5,135 

-
-

300,000 

" 

935 

50,653 

-
-
-

2,269 
14,764 

i 

-

-
5,000 

-

1,557 

670 

-

-
-

-
242 

-

-
-
-

" 

-
-

-

-

-

" 

-
-

'1,013,627 2,878,877 450,179 308,481 351,588 17,033 7,227 242 - -

3,831,740 431,082 (227,965) 7,964 (280,597) 114,804 63,182 4,272 1,304 3,717,694 

3,716,072 

115,668 

3,831,740 

395 



- - - - -

38.3.2 vfaruritics of assets and Iiabtfiries - based on expected maturity 

2015 

Assets 
Cash and balances with 

treasury banks 

Balances with other banks 

Lending to financial 

institutions
 
Advances
 

Operating fixed assets
 
Other assets
 

Liabilities 

Bills payable
 
Borrowings
 
Deposits and other accounts 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Other liabilities 

Net assets 

Head Office capital account 

L'm-emirted pr-ofit 

~!ft 

Total 

---.~ 

10,823,366 

6,805,513 

4,017,853 

3,856,160 

161.693 
4.017,853 

Up to lOver 1 Over 3 Over OYer lOver 2 Over 3 Oyer 5 Above 
month to 3 to 6 6 months to 2 to 3 to 5 to 10 10 years 

mo-nths months to 1 year years years years years 
------------------~ ~ ~ (RuPces In'000) ----.-----------------------------------~------------~---~~---.------­

4,233,157 

[27.674 

3,741,212 

2,589,396 

61,442 
70,485 

376,997 
127,674 

3,111,986 

880,257 
1,715 

48,152 

-
-

289.554 
791,600 

3,160 

12.094 

-

-

339,672 
438,255 

4,740 
4.616 

-
-
-

200,724 

9,480 
1.146 

4,546,781 1,096,408 787,283 211,350 

218,331 

[ 354 
103,564 

4,903,887 358,607 1,207,919 322,249 

(357,106) 737,801 (420,636) (110.899) 

3,856,160- - - -
- -- - -

- - - -
 -
119,556 61,725 95,728 1,185 366 

11,126 5,49413,799 11,928 -
79 79 158 158 4.003'- ­

133,434 72.930 6,837 3,860,529107,814 

5000 - - - _ 
1:220 ;84 

1 
1,055 486 _~l lJn-DJ[j'


, 3,979 ~ - - _ 
10,199 1,111 1,055 486 

123,235 71,819 106,759 6,351 3,860,529 

6,211 6,21 I - -
1,409,814 104,741 209,482 1,095,59 I 
5,223,318 4,742,243 147,878 109,866 

4,451 58 117 177 
161.719 50,634 1,130 2,285 



7014 

Total Upro 1 Over 1 OV(;[.3 Over Over 1 Over 2 Over 3 Over 5 Above 

month to 3 [Q 6 6 months to 2 to 3 to 5 to 10 10 yo.:2IS 

mouths raonrhs to I ~'C2r years years years years 
••...._- - _. ­ _•••••••~~ ••••-. --.-_.­ -- ..._•••••••_....._.~AA.__....•••.. (Rur'.:..:s in '0(I0) ._.~~_ •••_--••-..._----.._~~~-_.__ ._-------_.__ .- ••__ ••-------~~~. ~ ---­

,Iss",!s 

Cash :LId balances 'with 
treasury banks 

Balances with other banks 

Lending to financial 

institutions 

Advances 

Operating fixed assets 

Other o..<;SCIS 

-
4,016,022 299,950 - - ---- I~! ­9,643 9,643 - ----

- -1,408,414 897,517 205,.~30 305,~67 -
606,465 109,924 55,373 2,l751,021,219 184,104 276,1562,257,101 

2,33915,618 21,913 15,0367,80970,538 2,603 5,206 

2,73083,649 1l,286 343 ~ -68,06~ - - ~L 

3,716,072 

-
395 

-
1.227 

7,845,367 2,298,995 406,026 592,162 622,426 131,837 /0,409 4,514 1,304 3,717,694 

Liabilities 

Bills payable 

Borrowings 

Deposits and other accounts 

Deferred tax liability 

Other liabilities 

4,013,62i 2,424,996 532,703 432,267 599,159 

j ·DCJD5,000 - - -

''': I '" . .670 - - -
17,033 7,227 242 

Nee asSC[S 3,831,740 (126,001) (126,677) 159,895 23,267 114,804 63,182 4,2n L30~ 3,717,694 

Head Office capital account 

Unremitted profit 

Wi 

3,716,on 
115,668 

3,831,740 

4,561 4,561 -
602,899 100,483 200,966 

3,n 1,199 2,273,417 319,997 

5,940 157 312 
129,028 46,378 11,428 

,-----
-["';" -

125,214 547,571 

468 935 2,269 

._ 5,135 50,653 14,764 



38.4 Operational risk 

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss that may arise due to an event or action resulting from the failure of 
technology, processes, infrastructure, personnel and other risks having an operational risk impact. The Branch ensures that 
key operational risks are managed in a timely and effective. manner through a framework of policies, procedures and tools 
to identify, assess, monitor, control (Inc! report such risks. 

The key objectives of operational risk measurement and management include: 

Ensuring continued solvency of the Brauch through capital adequacy and enhanced understanding and management of 
signiticant operational risk exposures. 

Ensuring customer impact is minimized through protective and focused risk management practices. 

Ensuring SeJ1itH' management attention on significant operational risk exposure areas and mitigating risks is prioritized, 
focused ami adequate. 

Ensuring staff is sufficiently inccntivized to perform their risk management roles and responsibilities diligently. 

The management of the Branch has the responsibility to supervise and direct the management of operational risks and 
exposures. Management is also responsible [or ensuring that adequate and appropriate policies and procedures arc in place 
for the identification, assessment, monitoring, control and reporting of operational risks. 

Line management needs information to enable it to analyze operational risks, implement mitigating measures and 
determine the effectiveness of these mitigating measures, The Branch has implemented various tools to support the line 
manngcmenr. 

Compliance and Regulatory Risk Management (Control Self-Assessment (CSA) Framework) 

Risk Assets Management System BRAMPS Oil Framework Approach. All operations incidences are reported tow 

llend Office through web-based reporting system. 

A structured approach bas been adopted which helps the line management to identify and assess the risk of non­
compliance with regulatory requirements us well ns Internal policies. The Branch has implemented a comprehensive 
Compliance Risk Management Framework whereby self-assessment is undertaken by each business / support unit to 
mitigate the operational risk. 

39. DATl, OF AUTHORISATION 

These financial statements were authorized for issue on 2 2 MAR 2016 by the management ofthe Branch. 

40. GIWERAL 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with revised format for the financial statements of banks 
issued by the State Bank of Pakistan through BSD Circulars No.4 and 7 doted 17 February 2006 and 20 April 2010 
respectively lind related clarifications / modifications. 

{Yt/;ures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees, unless otherwise stated. 

j
. '-. 

~,C) </ KAZUTO OHASHI ~,~~IE(j 
c. ~ "'1 G~-Blrneral ManagerGCIH'ral M:11I'lger Deputy Ccucrnl !\'laIHlgcr 


